
Policy and Resources Committee
Date: Wednesday, 7 October 2020
Time: 6.00 p.m.

Venue: Virtual

This meeting will be webcast at
https://wirral.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

Contact Officer: Andrew Mossop
Tel: 0151 691 8501
e-mail: andrewmossop@wirral.gov.uk
Website: www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION 

2. APOLOGIES 

3. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are asked to consider whether they have any disclosable 
pecuniary interests and/or any other relevant interest in connection 
with any item(s) on this agenda and, if so, to declare them and state 
the nature of the interest.

4. PUBLIC AND MEMBER QUESTIONS 

4a.      Public Questions

Notice of questions to be given in writing or by email, by 
12noon, Friday, 2 October, 2020 to the Council’s Monitoring 
Officer and to be dealt with in accordance with Standing Order 
10.

4b.     Statements and Petitions

Representations and petitions to be dealt with in accordance 
with Standing Order 11.

4c.      Questions by Members

Questions by Members to be dealt with in accordance with 
Standing Orders 12.3 to 12.8.

Public Document Pack



SECTION A - KEY AND OTHER DECISIONS

5. CAR PARKING CHARGES OPTIONS (Pages 1 - 20)

6. SITE OF ROCK FERRY HIGH SCHOOL - SALE TO A REGISTERED 
PROVIDER (Pages 21 - 28)

7. SALE OF LAND AT ARROWE PARK ROAD, UPTON (Pages 29 - 
44)

8. APPOINTMENT OF SUB COMMITTEE MEMBERS (Pages 45 - 50)

SECTION B - BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

9. 2020/21 & 2021/22 COVID-19 BUDGET POSITION STATEMENT 
(Pages 51 - 66)

10. 2021/22 BUDGET PROCESS (Pages 67 - 80)

11. BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE MONITORING (Pages 81 - 104)

SECTION C - WORK PROGRAMME / OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

12. WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE (Pages 105 - 112)

Audio/Visual Recording of Meetings

Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees 
using non-disruptive methods. For particular meetings we may identify a 
‘designated area’ for you to record from. If you have any questions about this 
please contact Committee and Civic Services (members of the press please 
contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chair of the meeting has the 
discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons, including disruption 
caused by the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.

Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the 
material produced so that it can be reused and edited by all local people and 
organisations on a non-commercial basis.



POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 7 October 2020

REPORT TITLE: CAR PARKING CHARGES OPTIONS
REPORT OF: NICOLA BUTTERWORTH,

DIRECTOR OF NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES

REPORT SUMMARY

This report considers options for the reintroduction of the current car parking charges policy 
in Wirral in 2020/21 and alternative options for parking charges in 2021/22 and beyond.

Parking charging policy can influence public behaviour and outcomes and may be used to 
help support proposed council plan objectives.  Depending upon the options selected any 
decision has the potential to support the Wirral Plan 2025 priorities of a Sustainable 
Borough and Inclusive Economy.

Any decision may also support Objective 2 of the Wirral local plan 2020 – 2035 to ‘Promote 
safe, efficient and sustainable travel, improve accessibility, connectivity, and ease of 
movement, which reduces the need to travel by private car and encourages healthy 
lifestyles. Direct new development to locations which will provide easiest access to existing 
centres, high-frequency public transport corridors, pedestrian and cycle routes’

This matter affects all Wards within the Borough.

This decision is a key decision.

RECOMMENDATION/S

The Policy and Resources Committee is recommended to 

1. Approve the option to immediately re-introduce car parking charges at current 
tariffs across all the council’s car parks in the short term, until 31 March 2021,

2. Authorise the Director of Neighbourhoods to consult on the implications of the 
medium to long term options detailed in Appendix 1 to this report and bring a 
further report to the Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee in early 2021 with a recommendation as part of the budget 
options for the 2021/22 budget.

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 In April 2020 the decision was made to suspend all the Council’s parking charges, at 
on-street and off-street plus country parks locations. This report presents a wide 
range of options in relation to the re-introduction of charges.  The short-term option 
recommended (option 4, Appendix 1) is to re-introduce parking charges across the 
borough at tariffs set for 2020/21 in accordance with the existing policy.  This is in 
line with the council’s budget, is generally in line with what neighbouring authorities 
have done and will go some way to recovering some income for the remainder of the 
financial year. However, Committee Members will wish to fully consider all options 
and make an informed recommendation on the longer-term option(s) which they 
consider best address the balance between the council’s 2021/22 budget position, 
economic recovery of local businesses, the climate emergency declaration, active 
travel, sustainability, the local plan, public health implications, and to address 
inequalities across the Borough, having regard for the council’s corporate plans.

1.2 The council’s budget position is a key consideration. The council is able to recover 
75% of lost car parking income, after firstly offsetting the first 5% losses and any 
related savings, from the start of lockdown in March 2020 as part of the 
Governments compensation scheme, until the more extensive re-opening of high 
street retail and hospitality outlets on 4 July 2020.  Any costs and losses relating to 
parking income beyond 4 July 2020 will not be eligible and would need to be 
recovered from alternative council budgets. 

1.3 If parking charges continue to be suspended, then the budget pressure for this 
2020/21 financial year would be a £1.9 million deficit. To compensate for this, 
alternative savings would have to be found from elsewhere within the Council’s 
budget.

1.4 Any recommendation for reintroduction of charges in 2020/21 at different tariffs, 
other than returning to previous rates, would require a decision of full Council as the 
rates and budget have been already set by Council for the year.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 A wide range of options for reintroducing car parking charges in 2020/21 and for 
different parking charging strategies from 2021/22 are included in a table at 
Appendix 1, including: description; potential outcome; climate emergency/active 
travel implications; timescales; resources requirements; budget implications and 
further comments.  Appendix 3 contains a table of current 2020/21 parking tariffs 
(pre-suspension) and the effects of increases referenced in Appendix 1. 

2.2 An update on what other local authorities are currently doing in respect of car 
parking charges are set out in a table at Appendix 2.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The council’s budget for 2020/21 includes a net surplus income target of £950,000 
for the parking service in Highways & Infrastructure, Neighbourhoods directorate.  

Page 2



This is derived from £2.45m income, £1.8m of which is from parking ticket sales, and 
£1.5m expenditure (including all service costs). 

3.2 Statutory powers cannot be used to raise revenue for general council services, nor 
can charges be raised with the deliberate intention of financing traffic related 
expenditure other than to cover the cost of on and off-street parking with a modest 
surplus for contingencies. Income raised from charges for the use of car parks can 
be used to defray the cost of ensuring the safe use of infrastructure in, or serving the 
car park e.g. maintenance of  access roads, footpaths, railings, speed bumps, signs 
etc. as well as resurfacing and maintaining the car park itself and the council’s 
administrative costs in collecting the charges and maintaining the infrastructure. The 
majority of the council’s parking income comes from off-street parking. Historically, 
any surplus income from parking charges is used to contribute to the council’s 
overall highways and infrastructure service’s net overall budget, which is £7.4million 
in 2020/21.  This service delivers statutory functions and the repair and maintenance 
of all the council’s highway infrastructure, including car parks. 

 
3.3 A decision was made by chief officers through the Covid-19 emergency governance 

structure in April 2020 to suspend all the council’s parking charges, at on-street and 
off-street plus country parks locations. The decision was proposed to be kept under 
review.  This decision was taken to assist residents and key workers in parking for 
free when accessing shops for food and essentials, to help those businesses that 
were able to remain open, and to encourage the public to use parks and open 
spaces, in line with government guidance at the time. It also reduced the infection 
risks of people handling coins and pressing buttons on parking machines at a time of 
rapidly rising infection levels and travel being limited to essential journeys only.

3.4 These lockdown restrictions have since been relaxed and there have been large 
gatherings of people at our parks and open spaces and coastal locations, including 
overnight stopping, particularly during periods of good weather. 

3.5 From Monday 15 June 2020 non-essential retailers were able to open their doors to 
shoppers. From Saturday 4 July 2020 further high street retailers and hospitality 
premises were permitted to open. This has led to an increase in use of the council’s 
car parks.

3.6 The Cabinet Member for Community Services, with portfolio covering the parking 
service, made a decision on 1 July 2020 to reintroduce full parking charges at all 
council facilities with effect from 3 August 2020.  The rationale for the decision was 
to offer the most appropriate compromise and balance between council income loss, 
economic recovery of local businesses and public health implications. The decision 
was published on 9 July 2020.

3.7 This decision was called-in and a meeting of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
committee was held on 30th July 2020 6pm, and the Committee resolved: 
That

(1) The decision is to be referred back to Cllr Williamson, Cabinet Member for 
Finance, as decision taker in the absence of Cllr McManus. 

Page 3



(2) The Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee welcomes the statement 
made by Cllr Williamson [to the Committee] and agrees that car parking charges 
remain suspended until October 2020, where the Policy & Resources Committee 
should be invited to review and consider the position at that time.

3.8 Car parking in town centres is a complex and emotive issue (Association of Town 
and City Management); however, there is not a one-size-fits all approach to parking, 
nor is free parking a universal solution. The provision of off-street car parks and on-
street parking spaces comes at a cost which needs to be recovered. Furthermore, 
the creation of clear parking policies, embedded in holistic transport strategy, 
remains problematic because of the numerous stakeholders involved all working to 
different objectives.

3.9 The finding of a report produced for the Welsh Government (Assessing the Impact of 
Car Parking Charges on Town Centre Footfall) indicates that car parking charges is 
often perceived, particularly amongst businesses, as being a key determinant for 
changes in footfall levels in town and city centres. However, the available evidence is 
almost entirely anecdotal. Visitors to town centres suggested that car parking 
charges impact on how long they remain in the centre and, consequently, how much 
they spend whilst there. However, the general availability of spaces is felt by visitors 
to be more important than cost in their overall decision about visiting. Whilst a 
‘blanket’ free parking strategy has been suggested to encourage more car park 
users, these were generally found not to benefit target visitors (for example, the 
spaces were used primarily by town centre workers who were taking up the spaces 
all day, rather than shoppers) and consequently had an unexpected negative impact 
on footfall.

3.10 According to a report produced in partnership with the Liverpool City Region’s 
Authorities, Chambers of Commerce, BIDs and trade associations (Business 
Recovery Survey Report) there is a general expectation that there will be a reduced 
demand for business by up to 55% for the next 12 months as a result of COVID-19.

3.11 Usage surveys have shown that car park occupancy levels are currently at around 
35% on average. The estimated parking uptake (transactions) for the next 5 months 
is estimated at 40% of pre-COVID levels and this has been used in the options 
implications and budgetary forecasting. This assumption of 40% parking uptake is 
comparable with feedback received from Sefton and Cheshire West and Chester 
Councils.

3.12 At the time of writing this report Wirral is showing a sudden and sharp increase in 
confirmed COVID cases. As a result a cautious approach to remobilising/next steps 
is being considered. Given the speed of change we have seen in new cases the car 
parking charging options need considering in line with the current COVID position.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The suspension of car parking charges (and parking enforcement) across the whole 
of the borough has resulted in a loss of income of approximately £47,500 per week / 
£200,000 per month on average based on pre COVID existing use, (£24,500 from 
car parks, £7,500 from on-street and £3,500 from country parks and £12,000 from 
loss Penalty Charge Notice revenue per week). 

Page 4



4.2 The operational running costs for maintaining car parking facilities including rates, 
maintenance, servicing and enforcement is approximately £800,000 per annum.

4.3 The COVID19 restrictions/guidance from Government from March 2020 led to a drop 
in travel and, by extension, parking requirements, therefore the loss of income 
directly relating to the suspension of parking charges is limited.

4.4 However, as the COVID19 restrictions are relaxed car park usage is increasing, 
particularly at the country parks, as residents make the most of being able to 
undertake non-essential journeys.

4.5 Suspending car parking charges for the whole of this 2020/2021 financial year would 
result in budget pressure of £1.9 million deficit. Parking enforcement resumed in full 
on street from June and is expected to bring in £200k of Penalty Charge Notice 
income for 2020/2021.

4.6 The budget to account for any loss of income, which cannot be covered by the 
COVID19 Emergency fund received from Government, will be agreed by relevant 
Committee and the Policy and Resources Committee in conjunction with the Director 
of Neighbourhood Services.

4.7 Several of the car parking charges options as tabulated in Appendix 1 could 
minimise the loss of income or possibly increase income in future years. 

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The Council have powers under sections 32 and 35 of the Road Traffic Regulation 
Act (RTRA), 1984 to charge parking fees. Section 122 imposes a general duty on 
local authorities exercising functions under the RTRA 1984 to "secure the 
expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other traffic (including 
pedestrians) and the provision of suitable and adequate parking on and off the 
highway…". Charges should be fixed to cover the cost of maintaining the facilities 
and repaying any debt incurred for their construction, whilst budgeting for a modest 
surplus to allow for unforeseen expenses does not render the scheme unlawful, 
charges cannot be fixed for the purpose of raising money for non car parking related 
purposes. Parking enforcement has been scaled back to meet the reduced 
demands. When parking charges are reintroduced, then parking enforcement will be 
stepped up.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

6.1 Some of the options for the reintroduction of car parking charges can be met from 
existing resources with no additional costs.

6.2 Other options may require revenue growth and/or additional capital expenditure.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

Page 5



7.1 By continuing to offer free parking in all areas may encourage large groups of people 
to travel and gather at our public parks & open spaces and shops which may lead to 
an increased risk of the spread of the virus. 

7.2 Not continuing to offer free parking for the foreseeable future may have a negative 
impact on some local businesses in their recovery after lockdown and on those local 
people making use of our open spaces.

7.3 Effective management of car parking spaces through the use of charges can ensure 
a turn-over of parking and manage the supply of parking spaces.

7.4 Prioritising car drivers by providing free car parking raises equality issues – the 
council does not provide free travel by bus and in some cases does not provide cycle 
parking. There are a considerable number of Wirral residents without access to a 
car; this may be through choice but, assuming car owners may generally have higher 
incomes, free parking may be seen as subsidising those who are already better off 
and unfairly penalising more vulnerable residents and communities. 

7.5 The Wirral Strategic Regeneration Framework sets out the priorities and challenges 
for economic growth in the borough, to help guide and proactively drive investment 
and activity across Wirral to deliver our ambitions for local economy. It has a strong 
focus on sustainability; continued free parking could have a negative impact on 
health and climate change issues by encouraging car use instead of active travel.  
Increasing parking tariffs in future could encourage active travel or sustainable 
transport modes.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 Wirral Chamber of Commerce, Birkenhead Improvement District and other councils 
have also been consulted in the preparation of this report. Feedback from 
consultation with Wirral Chamber of Commerce BID team and their levy payers is 
listed at Appendix 4.

8.2 Further investigation of options selected for a longer-term car parking strategy will 
include public consultation. The guiding principles for a fair consultation can be 
summarised as follows;

• It should be at a time when proposals are at a formative stage; 
• Must include sufficient reasons for particular proposals to allow those 

consulted to give intelligent consideration and an intelligent response; 
• Those consulted should be made aware of the factors that are of decisive 

relevance to the decision; 
• Adequate time should be given for consideration and response; 
• The product of the consultation should be conscientiously taken into account 

by the decision makers in finalising their statutory proposals/ when the 
ultimate decision is taken.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 

Page 6



Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure 
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity.

9.2 This reintroduction of car parking charges has been subject to an equality impact 
assessment. A copy can be found at: -

 
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-
assessments

           As indicated in Appendix 1 a full EIA is required for each of the other options. 

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 The link between poor air quality, the climate emergency and emissions from 
vehicles is widely accepted. An effective car parking charging regime encouraging 
modal shift away from the private motor car towards cleaner, more sustainable 
modes of transport will have a positive environmental and climate change impact. 
Any car parking and transport strategy needs to link to the council’s Climate 
Emergency Declaration and Active Travel agendas.

If parking charges are reintroduced or increased in future as per several of the 
options contained within this report, this may be expected to:

- Reduce emissions of green-house gases             
       

REPORT AUTHOR: Steve Atkins
(Steve Atkins, Senior Network Operations Manager)
telephone:  0151 606 2270
email:  steveatkins@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 – Car Parking Charges Options

Appendix 2 – Update on what other councils are doing regarding car parking charges

Appendix 3 – Current parking charge tariffs and effects of increases

Appendix 4 - Wirral Chamber of Commerce BID team comments

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Reintroduction of car parking charges options report 26 June 2020

TCG JESIP Report Suspension of car park charges at country parks 23 March 2020

TCG JESIP Report Suspension of ALL parking charges 23 March 2020

Assessing the Impact of Car Parking Charges on Town Centre Footfall; prepared for the 
Welsh Government (mruk March 2015)
http://212.219.240.82/documents/s500000201/Appendix%202.pdf

Business Recovery Survey (NorthWest Research & Strategy July 2020)

Page 7

https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments
http://212.219.240.82/documents/s500000201/Appendix%202.pdf


https://growthplatform.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/09/Business-Recovery-Summary-
Report.pdf 

In-Town Parking: What Works (ATCM July 2014)
https://thegreatbritishhighstreet.co.uk/pdf/GBHS-What-Works.pdf

Strategic Regeneration Framework
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/business/Regeneration/Strategic%20Regener
ation%20main%20report.pdf

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Call-In on the Reintroduction of car parking charges

Cabinet Member decision on reintroduction of parking 
charges from 3 August 2020

30 July 2020

1 July 2020

Page 8

https://growthplatform.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/09/Business-Recovery-Summary-Report.pdf
https://growthplatform.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/09/Business-Recovery-Summary-Report.pdf
https://thegreatbritishhighstreet.co.uk/pdf/GBHS-What-Works.pdf
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/business/Regeneration/Strategic%20Regeneration%20main%20report.pdf
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/business/Regeneration/Strategic%20Regeneration%20main%20report.pdf


APPENDIX 1 - CAR PARKING CHARGING OPTIONS

Optio
n No. Brief Description of Option Potential Outcome Climate Emergency / Active Travel 

implications

Local Economy / Regeneration and 
Vulnerable / Protected groups 
implications

Implementation Timescale Resources required to 
deliver this option

Budget Implications for 
2020/2021 Any other comments

OPTIONS 1 - 6 CAN BE 
IMPLEMENTED 
IMMEDIATELY

1

Continue to offer free parking 
for the remainder of this 
financial year. Then reinstate 
charges as normal.

Income loss for the whole 
year for both on and off 
street and part PCN 
income.

Does not support climate emergency or active 
travel.

May encourage residents to visit 
shops and help support the local 
economy and regeneration. Full 
Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 
required to ascertain the likely impact 
on specific areas.

Immediately from 1st April 2021 Existing staffing resource 
only

Estimated income 
£200k from PCN
approx. £400k form Gov Comp 
Scheme (parking and pcn income)
Deficit of up to:-
£1.1 million from off-street,
£300k from on-street,
£400k from PCNs
TOTAL SERVICE BUDGET 
DEFICIT 
£1.8 million

Due to reduced usage on the car 
parks and on-street, increased on 
line shopping etc. there is a 
significant budget income shortfall 
that can be attributed to COVID and 
being in a lockdown situation 
regardless of any decision to 
continue to offer Free parking for the 
remainder of this financial year.

2
Continue to offer free parking 
until 1st January 2021. Then 
reinstate charges as normal.

Income loss for part year 
for both on and off street 
and part PCN income.

Proposal does not either support or discourage 
either of these agendas

May encourage residents to visit 
shops and help support the local 
economy and regeneration on the run 
up to Christmas. Full EIA required to 
ascertain the likely impact on specific 
areas.

Immediately from 1st January 2021 Existing staffing resource 
only

Estimated income 
£120k from Off-Street 
£30k from On-Street
£220k from PCN
approx. £400k form Gov Comp 
Scheme (parking and pcn income)
Deficit of up to:-
£980k from off-street,
£270k from on-street,
£380k from PCNs
TOTAL SERVICE BUDGET 
DEFICIT 
£1.63 million

As above for option 1, this proposal 
goes someway to reducing the 
budget deficit for this financial year

3

Change the chargeable hours, 
for example charge between 
10am and 3pm (existing hours 
are 8am to 6.30pm).

Income loss for both on 
and off street and part PCN 
income.

May not support climate emergency or active 
travel as it encourages residents to use their 
vehicles at certain times of the day.

May encourage residents to visit 
shops during periods when parking is 
free which could include after 
dropping children off at school and or 
after picking children up from school. 
Full EIA required to ascertain the 
likely impact on specific areas.

Immediately following any 
committee resolution

Existing staffing resource 
only

Estimated income 
£160k from Off-Street 
£40k from On-Street
£220k from PCN
approx. £400k form Gov Comp 
Scheme (parking and pcn income)
Deficit of up to:-
£940k from off-street,
£260k from on-street,
£380k from PCNs
TOTAL SERVICE BUDGET 
DEFICIT 
£1.58 million

As above for option 1, this proposal 
goes someway to reducing the 
budget deficit for this financial year

4

Reinstate charges as normal as 
soon as practicably possible 
following October 2020 
committee.

Start to recover income and 
reduce budget deficit , 
however, there is still 
income loss for both on and 
off street and part PCN 
income due to COVID.

Does not positively support climate emergency 
or active travel as it does not actively 
discourage residents to use their vehicles. See EIA attached to report Immediately following any 

committee resolution
Existing staffing resource 
only

Estimated income 
£200k from Off-Street 
£50k from On-Street
£220k from PCN
approx. £400k form Gov Comp 
Scheme (parking and pcn income)
Deficit of up to:-
£900k from off-street,
£250k from on-street,
£380k from PCNs
TOTAL SERVICE BUDGET 
DEFICIT 
£1.53 million

As above for option 1, this proposal 
goes someway to reducing the 
budget deficit for this financial year

20200929161525_004525_0006375_APPENDIX1CarParkingChargesOptions.xls 1 29/09/20 16:31

P
age 9



5 Free Weekend Parking - 
normal charges apply Mon-Fri

Weekend income loss for 
both on and off street and 
part PCN income.

May not support climate emergency or active 
travel as it encourages residents to use their 
vehicles at certain times of the day.

May encourage residents to visit 
shops during periods when parking is 
free, this is outside of school times 
and normal commuter type travel. Full 
EIA required to ascertain the likely 
impact on specific areas.

Immediately following any 
committee resolution

Existing staffing resource 
only

Estimated income 
£160k from Off-Street 
£40k from On-Street
£220k from PCN
approx. £400k form Gov Comp 
Scheme (parking and pcn income)
Deficit of up to:-
£940k from off-street,
£260k from on-street,
£380k from PCNs
TOTAL SERVICE BUDGET 
DEFICIT 
£1.58 million

As above for option 1, this proposal 
goes someway to reducing the 
budget deficit for this financial year

6

Continue to offer free parking 
on shoppers car parks but 
reinstate charges as normal on 
long stay car parks, on-street 
and Country Parks until 31st 
March 2021. Then reinstate all 
charges as normal

Start to recover income and 
reduce budget deficit , 
however, there is still 
income loss for both on and 
off street and part PCN 
income due to COVID.

Proposal does not either support or discourage 
either of these agendas

May encourage residents to visit 
shops and help support the local 
economy for the rest of the financial 
year. Full EIA required to ascertain 
the likely impact on specific areas.

Immediately following any 
committee resolution

Existing staffing resource 
only

Estimated income 
£70k from Off-Street 
£30k from On-Street
£220k from PCN
approx. £400k form Gov Comp 
Scheme (parking and pcn income)
Deficit of up to:-
£1.03k from off-street,
£270k from on-street,
£380k from PCNs
TOTAL SERVICE BUDGET 
DEFICIT 
£1.68 million

As above for option 1, this proposal 
goes someway to reducing the 
budget deficit for this financial year

OTHER OPTIONS (7 - 9) WITH 
A LONGER LEAD IN TIME

Budget Implications for 
2021/2022

7
Implement a lower flat rate in all 
areas (e.g. 50p or £1 , to park 
as long as you need)

Brings in a reduced 
income, standardises and 
simplifies the charging 
structure

Does not support climate emergency or active 
travel.

May encourage residents to visit 
shops and help support the local 
economy in its recovery from COVID. 
Doesn't allow for management of the 
parking spaces to ensure a turn over 
of the spaces. Full EIA required to 
ascertain the likely impact on specific 
areas.

3 months for abbreviated TRO 
process and new tariff 
implementation

Existing staffing resource 
only

Estimated income at 50p is £450k
Estimated income at £1 is £900k
TOTAL SERVICE DEFICIT 
BASED ON EXISTING BUDGET 
IS 
£1.5 - £1.95million

 Standardises and simplifies the 
charging structure making it easier 
for residents to understand. 
Illuminates the issuing of PCNs for 
overstaying. Doesn't encourage a 
turn over of the parking spaces in 
high demand areas. 

8 First 2-hours parking 'Free', 
then existing tariffs

Brings in a significantly 
reduced income, could 
prove difficult to operate

Does not support climate emergency or active 
travel.

May encourage residents to visit 
shops and help support the local 
economy in its recovery from COVID. 
Full EIA required to ascertain the 
likely impact on specific areas.

3 months for abbreviated TRO 
process and new tariff 
implementation

Existing staffing resource 
only

Estimated income at £1 is £750k
TOTAL SERVICE DEFICIT 
BASED ON EXISTING BUDGET 
IS 
£1.65million

75-80% of all tickets sold are for 1 
and 2 hour parking. This proposal 
will have a significant impact on 
income. It could be onerous to 
enforce if it relies on the enforcement 
officers taking observations. It could 
be problematic if it relies on 
residents obtaining a free 2 hour 
ticket from a machine (they may 
forget in the knowledge that they 
know the first 2 hours are free).

9 Free parking for residents - only 
visitors pay.

No data is held on the 
numbers of visitors parking 
from outside of the 
Borough but income will be 
significantly affected.

Does not support climate emergency or active 
travel.

May encourage residents to visit 
shops and help support the local 
economy in its recovery from COVID. 
It may discourage visitors from 
coming to our Borough. Full EIA 
required to ascertain the likely impact 
on specific areas.

3 months for abbreviated TRO 
process and up to 6 months or 
longer to ensure all residents are 
correctly registered on the scheme.

Existing staffing resource 
only

Estimated income is unknown
TOTAL SERVICE DEFICIT 
BASED ON EXISTING BUDGET 
IS 
up to £2.2million

Requires all residents to register 
online for a free virtual permit that 
would entitle them to free parking.
Could be a good scheme if parking 
charges are introduced in other 
Coastal areas for example as only 
visitors would have to pay to park.

20200929161525_004525_0006375_APPENDIX1CarParkingChargesOptions.xls 2 29/09/20 16:31

P
age 10



OTHER OPTIONS (10 - 19) 
FOR CONSIDERATION OF 
CHARGES AND BUDGET

Budget Implications for 
2021/2022
and longer term

10

Annual inflation increase to 
parking charges following the 
reintroduction of car parking 
charges (approx. 10p increase 
on all tariffs as 5p increases are 
avoided)

Income broadly keeps pace 
with inflation but fails to 
address current income 
shortfall and over time may 
increase divergence of 
budget/income (historically 
% returns have never 
matched % increases).

Does not positively support climate emergency 
or active travel as it does not actively 
discourage residents to use their vehicles.

 Fails to address 
inconsistencies/inequalities of 
charges across borough. Full EIA 
required to ascertain the likely impact 
on specific areas.

Immediate and ongoing Existing staffing resource 
only

Estimated income £600k - £750k 
but will rise if we continue to 
recover form COVID
TOTAL SERVICE BUDGET 
DEFICIT £1.5million

Minimal cost and maintains income 
broadly in line with inflation

11

 Introduce an above inflation 
increase to existing parking 
charges following the 
reintroduction of car parking 
charges (20p increase for this 
example but could be higher)

Potential to increase 
income above inflation

May discourage some residents from using 
their vehicles but not a significant step towards 
supporting climate change or the active travel 
agenda

Full EIA required to ascertain the 
likely impact on specific areas. Likely 
to have adverse impact on local 
economy/regeneration. 

3 months for abbreviated TRO 
process and new tariff 
implementation

Existing staffing resource 
only

Estimated income £700k - £850k 
but will rise if we continue to 
recover form COVID
TOTAL SERVICE BUDGET 
DEFICIT £1.4million

Minimal cost and with potential slight 
increase in income

12

Review and realignment of 
charges based upon strategic 
policy/strategy, to include 
consideration of variable 
charges based upon demand, 
events etc.

Charges could rise or fall in 
different parts of the 
borough. Potential to 
simplify tariff structure

Strategic based charging could be used to 
positively support both climate emergency and 
active travel agendas

Potential adverse impact on local 
economy/regeneration. Full EIA 
required to ascertain the likely impact 
on specific areas. Specifically in 
relation to Town centres and traders 
on the impact on businesses. 

3 to 6 months for charges/ 
economic/regeneration report plus 3-
6 months for full TRO process, inc 
consideration of objections and new 
tariff implementation.

Existing staffing resource 
only

Estimated income will depend on 
scale of charges - potential to 
increase income and address 
some of the deficit.

May result in significant % increases 
in some areas of the borough. 
Variable charges can be complex to 
implement but could be achieved. 
May be difficult for users to 
understand

13

Introduce charges into off-street 
car parks that are currently 
Free i.e.;
Bromborough, Bebington, Irby, 
Hoylake, New Brighton etc.

New income from some of 
the secondary town 
centres.

Could result in model change and hence 
positively supports

Potential adverse impact on local 
economy/regeneration
Potential displacement into adjacent 
residential areas
Full EIA required - in terms of existing 
usage - links to purpose of use of the 
car park for users i.e. shoppers, 
commuters, workers, residents etc 

3 to 6 months for charges/ 
economic/regeneration report, 3-6 
months for full TRO process, inc 
consideration of objections plus 6-9 
months for design, procurement and 
implementation of equipment.

Capital expenditure required 
and existing staffing resource
Revenue implications, 
enforcement, cash collection 
etc 

Estimated income £250 - £350k 
per annum, 
will depend on scale of charges 
and number of locations 

Income could be used to offset any 
of the other proposals that will 
negatively impact on income

14

Introduce new on-street 
charges into town centre areas 
e.g.
New Brighton, West Kirby, 
Hoylake, Heswall, Moreton etc.

New income from some 
town centre areas.

Could result in model change and hence 
positively supports

Potential adverse impact on local 
economy/regeneration
Potential displacement into adjacent 
residential areas
Full EIA required - in terms of existing 
visitors to the seaside locations

3 to 6 months for charges/ 
economic/regeneration report, 3-6 
months for full TRO process, inc 
consideration of objections plus 6-9 
months for design, procurement and 
implementation of equipment.

Capital expenditure required 
and existing staffing resource
Revenue implications, 
enforcement, cash collection 
etc 

Estimated income £200k per 
annum, 
will depend on scale of charges 
and final number of locations 

Income could be used to offset any 
of the other proposals that will 
negatively impact on income. 

15

Introduce parking charges into 
coastal locations e.g.
New Brighton, West Kirby, 
Leasowe, Hoylake. 

New income from some of 
the seaside/tourist areas.

Could result in model change and hence 
positively supports

Potential adverse impact on local 
economy/regeneration
Potential displacement into adjacent 
residential areas
Full EIA required - in terms of existing 
visitors to the seaside locations

4 to 6 months for charges/ 
economic/regeneration report, 3-6 
months for full TRO process, inc 
consideration of objections plus 6-9 
months for design, procurement and 
implementation of equipment.

Capital expenditure required 
and existing staffing resource
Revenue implications, 
enforcement, cash collection 
etc 

Estimated income £250k per 
annum, 
will depend on scale of charges 
and final number of locations 

Income could be used to offset any 
of the other proposals that will 
negatively impact on income. 
Coastal locations have proven 
popular following the relaxation of 
the lockdown restrictions.

16 Introduce charges for resident 
parking schemes

Schemes would become 
self financing

Could result in model change and hence 
positively supports

Full EIA required to ascertain the 
likely impact on residents. May have 
small adverse impact on local 
economy/regeneration. 

3 months for public consultation, 3-6 
months for TRO process, 
consideration of objections. 
Implementation phased over a 
further 6-12 months to allow for 
processing 5000+ applications, 
payments and permits.

Existing staffing resource 
only

Estimated income will depend on 
fee, approx. £75-£100k per annum 

Income could fund improved 
maintenance of lines and signs and 
hence better 
compliance/enforcement

17
Review of existing on-street 
charges in Birkenhead 
Controlled Parking Zone.

Introduction of 
“competitive” edge of town 
charges may increase 
patronage and income. 

Could result in model change and hence 
positively supports

Full EIA required to ascertain the 
likely impact on the local businesses 
and shoppers to Birkenhead. May 
have small adverse impact on local 
economy/regeneration. 

3 to 6 months for charges/ 
economic/regeneration report plus 3-
6 months for full TRO process, inc 
consideration of objections and new 
tariff implementation.

Existing staffing resource 
only

Current income pre-COVID approx. 
£380k per annum. 
Estimated income £500k

Private operators may reduce 
charges and we become less 
competitive

20200929161525_004525_0006375_APPENDIX1CarParkingChargesOptions.xls 3 29/09/20 16:31

P
age 11



18 Introduce evening charges on 
and off street.

Possible income from 
some areas with a thriving 
night time economy

Potential adverse impact on local 
economy/regeneration.
Impact for visitors in some resident parking 
areas

Potential displacement into adjacent areas
Revenue implications, enforcement etc

Full EIA required on businesses and 
tourism areas. Assessment of current 
use of carparking etc in the evening? 
May have small adverse impact on 
local economy/regeneration. 

3 to 6 months for charges/ 
economic/regeneration report plus 3-
6 months for full TRO process, inc 
consideration of objections and new 
tariff implementation.

Capital expenditure required 
and existing staffing resource
Revenue implications, 
enforcement, cash collection 
etc 

Estimated income £100 - £200k 
per annum, 
will depend on scale of charges 
and number of locations 

Progress to detailed scheme design 
following Economic/Regen appraisal

19 Emissions based charges

Could lower charges for 
electric / low emission 
vehicles and increase 
charge for higher emission 
vehicles - link to wider 
Transport Strategy

Positive links to climate change strategy

Full EIA required to ascertain the 
likely impact on residents. May have 
small but temporary adverse impact 
on local economy/regeneration. 

3 to 6 months for charges/ 
economic/regeneration report plus 3-
6 months for full TRO process, inc 
consideration of objections and new 
tariff implementation.

Potential capital expenditure 
required for additional EV 
charging points, 
potential negative revenue 
implications, 
existing staffing resource

In isolation may initially result in 
reduced parking income.

Probably best introduced in 
conjunction with resident or other 
seasonal/periodic charges. Would 
need to be linked to a scheme were 
residents have pre registered, 
(Cashless parking App or Wirral 
resident permit scheme) as too 
complex for P&D machines

20 Car park asset transfer or 
disposal in part or whole

Potential for capital receipt 
or revenue stream 
depending upon options 
appraisal - link to wider 
Transport Strategy

Proposal does not either support or discourage 
either of these agendas

Full EIA required on businesses, 
tourism and residents. Assessment of 
current use of carparking etc ? 
Disposal of under utilised car parks 
should not have any adverse impact 
on local economy/regeneration. 

12 months + Existing staffing resource 
only

Assess asset transfer or disposal 
on basis of level of income and 
maintenance costs.  

Dependent upon car park and terms 
of disposal.  Better managed car 
parks may encourage use although 
this is dependent upon location and 
charging agreed with the new 
operator. Potential loss of control 
and impact on 
regeneration/economy. It transfers 
any risk.

NOTES

Budget Implications in 
column 'H' have been RAG 
rated where green is positive 
for income and Red is 
negative for income.

The 2020/21 figures allow for 
the compensation from the 
government COVID 19 
emergency fund scheme. 

Assuming charges are 
reintroduced there will be a 
budget pressure for 2021/22 
of approximately £1 million 
based on a 60% drop in 
income as a result of COVID

20200929161525_004525_0006375_APPENDIX1CarParkingChargesOptions.xls 4 29/09/20 16:31

P
age 12



APPENDIX - 2 UPDATE on what other authorities are doing

Council Action regarding car parking charges and enforcement From When Latest Update

Sefton

In Sefton we continued to enforce higher level contraventions where there was a clear danger / obstruction.
From last week we recommenced normal enforcement and signed car parks to show that charges applied. We
have been issuing warning notices for failing to pay and display and will continue this (but not for multiple
offenders!) until Sunday, starting full enforcement from Monday 8th.

08/06/2020

Pay and display and Sefton Council car
parking charges in Southport and across
Sefton back in force from 18th May
2020.

Liverpool
Charges return to pay and display bays in Liverpool city centre, charges are needed to be reintroduced so shops
can reopen safely.

15/06/2020
Charges reintroduced form 15th June
2020

Knowsley Parking charges continue to be suspended, enforcement restarts from 8th June 2020. Ongoing
Parking charges continue to be
suspended for the foreseeable future.

St Helens Parking charges continue to be suspended, Ongoing

Parking charges have resumed at council-
controlled car parks in St Helens town
centre and payment by phone is
encouraged. 30th June 2020

Cheshire West and
Chester

Business as usual here on enforcement and back office however we have stopped bailiff visits.
We are shutting down some of our car parks that stay open of a night time and have limited our park and ride
to Monday to Saturday every half hour instead of 12 minutes.
Parking charges will continue.

Ongoing

Parking charges are due to come back
into effect at Chester Racecourse and
Linenhall Car Parks after this weekend.
Since June, free parking has been on
offer at both car parks but this will come
to an end on Sunday (August 16).
From Monday (August 17), Chester
Racecourse will reintroduce its £5 all day
charge, with cars being able to park
overnight for £10.
Linenhall Car Park has introduced a new
day rate of £4.50 and a new car park
management system will be also be in
place, allowing drivers to pay via cash,
contactless, online or by app.

Oldham Oldham are starting charging and enforcing again as from tomorrow – issuing warning notices for one week 03/06/2020
Charges reintroduced form 3rd June
2020

Derbyshire Dales

We reintroduced pay and display 2 weeks ago, when the PM announced that there was no limit on daily travel
or exercise time.  Not surprisingly we were inundated with visitors.

Message is that visitors follow Covid-19 Secure guidance if using our car parks (that they take responsibility for
hand cleansing/washing as soon as possible and not touch their faces in the interim).  We’re also having a
cleaning team visit the car parks twice each day to sanitise the machine fascia's.  Contactless payments have
jumped from an average of 16% (pre-covid) to almost 60% but not all sites have the capability.  Now looking at
phone payment options with colleagues on the Derbyshire Parking Board

18/05/2020
Charges reintroduced form  18th May
2020

P
age 13



Borough of Barrow-
in-Furness

Not looking at doing anything in June, waiting to see what other councils are doing form July onwards. Even
though we are a really small authority, we’ve taken a big hit financially through not charging for P&D or our
contract/season ticket parking.

July onwards

Charges reinstated in Barrow's car parks
from Monday, July 6.
Free parking will be available in Portland
Walk and Whittaker Street after 3pm.

West Lancashire
Borough Council

Our Council Members have decided to suspend parking charges and enforcement in Ormskirk in West
Lancashire until September to assist the economic recovery of the town centre.

October
onwards

Parking will remain free in Ormskirk
town centre until at least September,
West Lancashire Borough Council has
confirmed.

Stockport
Metropolitan
Borough Council

We’re currently  setting up meetings to discuss this.  It’s a tricky one!
Sorry that I don’t have any answers/conclusions at the moment.

02/06/2020
From Monday 13 July parking charges
resumed in all council car parks and on
street pay and display parking locations.

Calderdale MBC

Recommenced proactive enforcement w/c 18 May – we focused on higher level contraventions for the first
week (yellow lines, bus stops, taxi ranks, clearways etc) and didn’t use warnings, as no one should be parking
in/on these restrictions.

What we found was that by having the CEO’s proactively patrolling, by default started encouraging the turnover
of loading and disabled bays. Enforcement of the loading and disabled then commenced w/c 25 May – we used
warning notices for 2 days and then PCN’s.

Introduced On Street charges this week (w/c 1 June) – warning notices for 2 days, PCN’s from tomorrow.

Plan to introduced off street charges from W/c 15 June   - warning notices for 2 days and PCN’s from day 3

We plan to start looking at resident permit areas w/c 29 June – we’ve left these till last due to the increased
numbers working at home, but we will consider isolated cases, if it is felt a safety or obstruction is being caused.

Phased
approach from

18th May

Charges reintroduced, with on-street
parking charges applying from 1st June
2020 whilst charges at car parks will be
reintroduced from 15th June 2020.

Wigan

We are currently allowing free parking (not advertised as such, but the fact people know we are not enforcing
they are not paying for parking).  We are issuing warning notices as opposed to PCNs should vehicle be parked
in contravention, but most of our CEOs have been helping out with traffic management at the recycling centres
and other locations.

We are reviewing when to start charging and going back to issuing PCNs.  I would imagine it will be in the next
couple of weeks, in line with when the none essential shops are allowed to open i.e. 15.06.20

Possibly from
15/06/2020

Free weekend parking

Free weekend car parking applies to
Wigan Council owned car parks in Wigan
and Leigh, until 28th March 2021.

Please note: The Grand Arcade is not a
council owned car park.

Roadside parking is not covered in this
offer.

P
age 14



Burnley

We have never offered free parking, just stopped enforcement during lockdown. Income levels and car park
usage are about 10% of normal.
Enforcement has resumed in the last 2 weeks in the form of a warning notice first, then PCN for repeat
offender....but this may change come the 15 June.

18/05/2020
Charges never stopped, only
enforcement, this is back up to normal
levels

South Lakeland
District Council

Enforcement stopped but the car parks remained open. Ongoing
Charges never stopped, only
enforcement, this is back up to normal
levels

NOTE: The Grange and Pyramids car parks in Birkenhead are charging for parking and The Cherry Tree centre car park in Liscard is charging for parking.

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3 ‐ Current parking charge tariffs, income and effects of increases

Car Park

Birkenhead Shoppers Car Parks Post Code No. of spaces Blue Badge 2018/19 2019/20 Parking Tariff with 10p increase Parking Tariff with 20p increase Parking Tariff with 50p increase

Europa Square CH41 6AH 150 14 268,526 260,000 Up to half hour* 70p Up to half hour* 80p Up to half hour* 90p Up to half hour* £1.20
Cook Street * CH41 2QX 11 0 15,417 15,916 Up to 1 hour £1.20 Up to 1 hour £1.30 Up to 1 hour £1.40 Up to 1 hour £1.70
Wilbraham Street CH41 5FD 54 0 13,192 8,496 Up to 2 hours £1.80 Up to 2 hours £1.90 Up to 2 hours £2.00 Up to 2 hours £2.30
Oliver Street CH41 6HH 16 6 43,301 44,156 Up to 3 hours £2.30 Up to 3 hours £2.40 Up to 3 hours £2.50 Up to 3 hours £2.80
Exmouth Street CH41 4NF 48 3 26,100 22,935 Up to 4 hours £3.50 Up to 4 hours £3.60 Up to 4 hours £3.70 Up to 4 hours £4.00
Atherton Street CH41 6HD 21 2 28,959 26,857 Up to 5 hours £4.30 Up to 5 hours £4.40 Up to 5 hours £4.50 Up to 5 hours £4.80
Europa Pools** CH41 6RN 197 22 69,080 91,499 All day £4.70 All day £4.80 All day £4.90 All day £5.20
Hamilton Building CH41 6RN 60 2 5,764 5,578 ** Coach Parking All day £5.00 ** Coach Parking All day £5.10 ** Coach Parking All day £5.20 ** Coach Parking All day £5.50
Barton Street* CH41 5EX 117 5 49,057 46,854

Birkenhead Long Stay Car Parks Post Code No. of spaces Blue Badge Parking Tariff Parking Tariff Parking Tariff Parking Tariff

Woodside Approach CH41 6DU 25 1 22,416 21,891 Up to 1 hour £1.20 Up to 1 hour £1.30 Up to 1 hour £1.40 Up to 1 hour £1.70
Hinson Street CH41 5BY 90 0 52,072 62,974 All day £4.70 All day £4.80 All day £4.90 All day £5.20
Duncan Street CH41 5EX 21 2 15,032 18,429
Birkenhead / Heswall Long Stay 
Car Parks Post Code No. of spaces Blue Badge Parking Tariff Parking Tariff Parking Tariff Parking Tariff

Elgin Way CH41 6NJ 45 2 23,578 23,469 Up to half hour* 70p Up to half hour* 80p Up to half hour* 90p Up to half hour* £1.20
Quarry Bank Street* CH41 2QX 49 0 9,809 11,403 Up to 1 hour £1.20 Up to 1 hour £1.30 Up to 1 hour £1.40 Up to 1 hour £1.70
Upper Mount Avenue CH60 4RH 24 0 20,797 21,533 All day £2.20 All day £2.30 All day £2.40 All day £2.70

Birkenhead Long Stay Car Parks Post Code No. of spaces Blue Badge Parking Tariff Parking Tariff Parking Tariff Parking Tariff

Price Street CH41 4JQ 500 0 74,637 66,973 Up to 1 hour £1.20 Up to 1 hour £1.30 Up to 1 hour £1.40 Up to 1 hour £1.70
Up to 2 hours £1.80 Up to 2 hours £1.90 Up to 2 hours £2.00 Up to 2 hours £2.30
Up to 3 hours £2.30 Up to 3 hours £2.40 Up to 3 hours £2.50 Up to 3 hours £2.80
All day £3.20 All day £3.30 All day £3.40 All day £3.70
Coach Parking All day £5.00 Coach Parking All day £5.10 Coach Parking All day £5.20 Coach Parking All day £5.50

Other Areas Shoppers Tariff Post Code No. of spaces Blue Badge Parking Tariff Parking Tariff Parking Tariff Parking Tariff
Rocky Lane CH60 0BY 15 0 18,151 16,503 Up to 1 hour 90p Up to 1 hour £1.00 Up to 1 hour £1.10 Up to 1 hour £1.40
Pye Road CH60 0DB 152 6 93,529 94,840 Up to 2 hours £1.00 Up to 2 hours £1.10 Up to 2 hours £1.20 Up to 2 hours £1.50
Mount Avenue CH60 4RH 88 2 49,697 55,441 Up to 3 hours £1.40 Up to 3 hours £1.50 Up to 3 hours £1.60 Up to 3 hours £1.90
Puddydale CH60 7SG 60 2 52,300 55,398 Up to 4 hours £2.30 Up to 4 hours £2.40 Up to 4 hours £2.50 Up to 4 hours £2.80
Dee Lane CH48 0AQ 173 4 87,810 78,705 Up to 5 hours £3.50 Up to 5 hours £3.60 Up to 5 hours £3.70 Up to 5 hours £4.00
Concourse CH48 4HX 171 5 141,532 148,976 All day £4.70 All day £4.80 All day £4.90 All day £5.20
Seaview Road CH45 4LA 193 6 53,074 44,405
Liscard Village CH45 4JR 94 2 94,358 97,577
Liscard Crescent CH44 1AE 7 0 13,806 14,421

1,341,994 1,355,229
Trader Permit Charges
Birkenhead £600.00 £600.00 £600.00 £600.00
Liscard £600.00 £600.00 £600.00 £600.00
Heswall/ West Kirby £600.00 £600.00 £600.00 £600.00

Current Parking Tariff

additional income in the order of 
£200k ‐ £250k

additional income in the order of 
£300k ‐ £400k

additional income in the order of 
£100k ‐  £150k

Income per Car Park (£)

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 – Wirral Chamber of Commerce BID team comments

1) Birkenhead Business Improvement District fully supports Wirral Borough Council’s 
introduction of free parking charges. This has injected a substantial amount of footfall 
in Birkenhead. Noticeably following the free parking, Birkenhead is now number two 
in the UK for recovering cities and towns. 

2) The continuation and promotion from Wirral Council regarding free car parking 
would be a continued boost to our businesses. Many residents may still be wary about 
travelling via public transport into the town centre and free car parking will allow the 
town centre to be more accessible for them. Our neighbouring retail park in 
Bromborough offer free car parking and this could mean that those who have been 
using Birkenhead during this period may decide to go elsewhere. 

3) However, there will be concerns of more cars on the road in the town centre 
obviously goes against Wirral Council green plan and naturally encouragement 
towards public transport, walk, cycle has always been promoted in usual 
circumstances however our businesses need residents to shop in Birkenhead and 
keep the economy local in order to give Birkenhead the best possible chance to come 
out of this pandemic.

4) Our businesses would encourage further free car parking to help boost our 
economy. However, if parking charges should be re-introduced it would be preferable 
for the charges to be competitive with The Pyramids Centre which charge £2.00 all 
day, admittedly the Council Car parks have a varied tariff for different times, for 
example Europa Square short stay is 70 pence for 30 minutes up to £4.70 for all day.

5) Another observation is that the likes of Europa Square car park, which is opposite 
the Market, it provides foot fall to that side of the town centre and has been consistently 
full during lock down as a result of free parking. It may be worth considering 
reintroducing charges in certain areas. 

6) Overall, our recommendation is with the proposed developments about to happen 
it would be beneficial for the Council to be flexible in their approach to car parking fees 
to encourage safe ingress and egress into the town centre for the very point you raised 
with people’s concerns travelling on public transport, especially with increase of Covid 
Infections on Wirral Presently.

Wirral Chamber of Commerce | Community Action Wirral | Birkenhead BID 

The Lauries, Claughton Rd, Birkenhead, CH41 6EY

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 7 October 2020

REPORT TITLE: SITE OF ROCK FERRY HIGH SCHOOL - SALE TO A 
REGISTERED PROVIDER

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND PLACE

REPORT SUMMARY

This report seeks approval to the sale of part of the site of the former Rock Ferry High 
School, Rock Ferry at a revised sale price, following an earlier decision to sell at Cabinet on 
20 January 2020.

The sale will support the Wirral Plan and its delivery through the generation of capital 
receipts and enabling a Registered Provider of social housing to develop 186 new 
affordable homes in the borough.

This matter affects the Rock Ferry Ward and is a key decision. 

RECOMMENDATION/S

That the Director of Law and Governance, in consultation with the Director of Regeneration 
and Place,  be authorised to negotiate and finalise a sale of part of the site of the former 
Rock Ferry High School, as defined at paragraph 3.3 of this report, to Torus62 Ltd 
(Registered Society No RS007826) for £1,200,000 plus a contribution of £1,500 towards 
the Council’s costs.

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.0 This sale will lead to an improvement in the housing offer available in Wirral by 
working with a registered provider to develop the site for affordable housing 
purposes and to generate a capital receipt from the sale of the land.  The sale will 
result in the development of an extra care housing scheme, supported by funding 
from Homes England. The development will see 186 shared ownership and 
affordable rent residential units including houses, bungalows and apartments created 
on the site. Of these, more than 100 will be extra care units.

1.1 The sale will also reduce the void and security costs incurred in holding the asset.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 The Council could leave the site in its current state. This is not considered to be a 
viable option as the site is costing on average over £200,000  a year to keep secure 
including rates and service charges. 

2.2   The Council would declare the whole site surplus, meaning that all areas of the site 
could be released for housing but there are likely to be strong views locally against 
this as a proposal. Such step would require Secretary of State approval.

2.3  The Council could proceed with some other mixed use option for the site, although it 
is considered that the proposal for the slae of part of the site to Torus is the favoured 
option.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 Rock Ferry High School was located in Highfield South, Rock Ferry and the site, 
which extends to approximately 8.3 Hectares, is shown thickly edged on the 
attached plan. In 2011 Rock Ferry High School and Park High School closed 
following a review of Secondary School provision in Birkenhead and came together 
on one site of the former Park High School under the newly formed University 
Academy of Birkenhead, now called the Birkenhead Academy. The school was 
closed in 2011 and the majority of buildings were subsequently demolished, with the 
exception of one detached building known as Ravenswood, which was retained due 
to its Grade II listed status.

3.2 Cabinet declared the property surplus to operational requirements on 7th November 
2013 and granted approval for the disposal of the asset including the listed building, 
Ravenswood, in accordance with S123 of the Local Government Act 1972.

3.3 On 10th September 2015 Cabinet considered a further report setting out options for 
the site and the findings of public consultation. The resolution was to sell part of the 
site, which housed the former school buildings, for housing development. The site is 
shown shaded on the plan attached to this report as Appendix 1 and extends to 
approximately 4.65 Ha and that is the extent of the site that is proposed for sale for 
the purposes of this report.

Page 22



3.4 Following that decision, officers liaised with residents and worked with a Registered 
Housing Provider, Torus62 Ltd (Torus) (then known as Liverpool Mutual Homes) to 
identify a suitable housing scheme. Torus was selected as the preferred Provider 
due to its funding allocation from Homes England which enabled it to develop an 
extra care housing scheme. Extra care housing has been identified as a key priority 
in Wirral’s Housing Strategy. 

3.5 Torus also has Homes England Strategic Partnership status which provides it with   
access to confirmed grant funding to develop additional new affordable homes. 
Torus has identified a market for this offer in Wirral. 

3.6 The Council’s Housing and Investment Team has worked with Torus and, in 
consultation with residents’ groups and local ward members, is supportive of a 
scheme of 186 residential units comprising of 102 extra care homes for affordable 
rent, 19 shared ownership homes and 65 homes for affordable rent. This mix of units 
responds to the borough’s affordable housing needs. The scheme includes the 
retention and refurbishment of the listed Ravenswood to individual units at affordable 
rent. The Council granted planning permission for the development of the extra care 
facility and the conversion of Ravenswood on 13 February 2020.

3.7 Completion of the proposed development will further support some of the key 
priorities in the Wirral Council Plan 2025 which focus on safe and pleasant 
communities, inclusive economy, and active and healthy lifestyles.

3.8 Based on the above proposal, Torus submitted an offer to purchase the site at 
£2,100,000.  The Council’s property consultants, Lambert Smith Hampton (LSH), 
appraised the offer at the time and considered that, based on the information 
provided, that it fairly reflected the land value base on that scheme. Cabinet 
approved the sale to Torus on these terms at its meeting of 20 January 2020 
considering that the sale price could be justified on the basis of the benefits of the 
scheme in terms of social well-being for local residents having regard to the General 
Disposal Consent (England) 2003.

3.9 On undertaking further detailed investigation, Torus advised of revised costs for the 
refurbishment of the listed Ravenswood. The previous costs had been 
underestimated and were further affected as a result of significant fire damage to 
Ravenswood in March 2020.  Having regard to these issues Torus reduced its offer 
to £1,200,000. 

3.10 On receipt of the revised offer, LSH provided further opinion and, having regard to 
the foregoing, they are of the view that the revised offer of £1,200,000 is reasonable 
to deliver the agreed scheme. LSH has also provided a view on the open market 
value of the site which they believe to be in the region of £3,022,500. Having regard 
to LSH’s opinion, the Council’s Assets and Surveying Manager considers that the 
market value of the site is £3,022,500. This means that the Council will effectively be 
foregoing a receipt of £1,822,500 to secure the agreed scheme.

3.11 Under s123 of the Local Government Act 1972, except with the consent of the 
Secretary of State, the Council shall not dispose of land for a consideration less than 
the best reasonably obtainable. The Secretary of State has issued the General 

Page 23



Disposal Consent (England) 2003 (“the General Disposal Consent”) which applies 
where:

a) the Council consider the purpose of disposal is likely to contribute to the 
achievement of any one or more the following in respect of any part of its area 
of any persons resident in its area (i) promotion or improvement of economic 
well- being; (ii) promotion or improvement of social well- being ;(iii) promotion or 
improvement of environmental well- being  and in addition

b) the difference between the best price as assessed in line with the guidance in 
the consent and the price to be paid is not in excess of two million pounds.

3.12 It  is considered that  that the terms of the disposal meet the terms of the  General 
Disposal Consent because the disposal will enable the development of social 
housing, including shared ownership and units for affordable rent which will 
contribute towards the promotion or improvement of social well-being  for residents 
within the local area  It is considered that the cost of  foregoing of £1,822,500 capital 
receipt by the Council is  outweighed by the social well-being benefits by virtue of the 
fact that the scheme will realise 186 residential units comprising of 102 extra care 
homes for affordable rent,  19 shared ownership homes and 65 homes for affordable 
rent.

3.13 The proposal to sell at £1,200,000 is within the threshold of this consent.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The sale will generate a capital receipt of £1,200,000 plus a contribution towards the 
Council’s costs. The value of the receipt reflects the added benefit as described in 
3.13 above and once completed the Council will benefit from the additional Council 
Tax from 186 new units. Following the earlier January 2020 Cabinet report, an 
assumed receipt has already been included within the 2020/21 budget as approved 
at full Council on 2 March 2020. If the sale is not approved and the receipt not 
generated, this will result in a further pressure in the 2020/21 budget and savings will 
have to be found elsewhere within the Council’s budgets to offset it.

4.2 The sale will enable Torus to access Shared Ownership & Affordable Homes 
Programme grant from Homes England of just over £7.5 million.

4.3 As a conditional requirement for the disposal of former school footprint and playing 
fields a beneficiary school project was submitted to the Department of Education 
(DfE). Riverside Primary School in Wallasey will, as a result of the capital receipt, 
receive investment for refurbishment.

4.4 Void costs to date have amounted to £952,000 including £316,000 of security costs 
since the closure of the school in 2011. The sale will have the added benefit of 
reducing the Council’s ongoing void and security costs.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The sale is in accordance with the Council’s powers as described in para 3.12.

Page 24



5.2 As a former school, in accordance with section 77 of the School Standards 
Framework Act 1998 and schedule 1 of the Academies Act 2010, the consent of the 
Education and Skills Funding Agency is required for a disposal. Such consent was 
granted on 2nd October 2017.

5.3     The reduction in market value will be compliant with the rules prohibiting State Aid 
provided that Torus enters into legally binding commitments to provide the social 
housing promised and provided that it can demonstrate that after taking into account 
its estimated future revenues and costs it needs the grant funding from Homes 
England and the reduction in market value to render the scheme viable. Final 
calculations will be made to determine compliance. Torus would be liable to repay 
any overpayment. 

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

6.1 There are no IT or staffing implications arising from this report.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 Should the sale to Torus not proceed in a timely manner, it could jeopardise the 
ability to deliver this scheme, which is subject to Homes England timescales.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 Officers have consulted with local residents on the proposals for this site. Torus has 
also undertaken several consultation events and meetings with residents to discuss 
its proposals and worked with residents to address where possible any matters 
raised.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 There is no relevance to equality at this time.

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 The transaction will result in the development of this vacant site and derelict property 
with modern homes built to current energy efficiency standards.

REPORT AUTHOR: Steve McMorran
(Steve McMorran)
telephone:  0151 666 3891
email:  stevemcmorran@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

Site plan

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Appraisal report on the offer and value.

Page 25



SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date
Cabinet – site of the former Rock ferry High School – Sale 
to a Registered Provider.

20 January 2020

Page 26



Site of the former Rock Ferry High School
Ravenswood Avenue
Rock Ferry
Wirral
CH42 4NY

© Crown copyright and database rights 2018 Ordnance Survey 100019803. 
You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

© Crown copyright material is reproduced with the permission of Land Registry under delegated authority from the Controller of HMSO.

Scale: 1:2500 

Date: 26.11.2019

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 7 October 2020

REPORT TITLE: SALE OF LAND AT ARROWE PARK ROAD, UPTON
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND PLACE

REPORT SUMMARY

This report seeks approval to amending a plan attached to an earlier decision to sell land at 
Arrowe Park Road, Upton.

The sale will support the Wirral Plan and its delivery through the generation of a capital 
receipt and promotion of economic activity.

The matter affects the Upton Ward and is a key decision.

RECOMMENDATION 

That:

(1)  the public open space land edged red on the attached amended plan set out as 
Appendix 2 to this report  at Arrowe Park Road, Upton (“the Site”), be declared surplus 
to Council requirements;

(2)  the Director of Regeneration and Place  be authorised to agree a sale of the Site to Lidl 
GB Ltd. at £820,000 plus fees;

(3)  the Site is appropriated from primarily residential use to planning purposes pursuant to 
Section 122 of the Local Government Act (LGA) 1972, and disposed of provided no 
objections are made;

(4)  if the Site is appropriated as recommended that the Council will advertise the sale of 
the public open space as required by law;

(5)  any objections to the appropriation and/or disposal be considered and determined by 
the Director of Regeneration and Place, in consultation with the Chair of Policy and 
Resources Committee.

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 To facilitate the sale of land to the discount food operator, Lidl, to enable the 
Company to assemble a site for the development of a new supermarket and to 
generate a capital receipt.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 The land is only realistically capable of being developed when combined with the 
neighbouring sites.  In view of this, and the amount of the consideration on offer, no 
other options have been considered.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 On 24th October 2019 Members approved the sale of land at Arrowe Park Road, 
Upton to Lidl for £820,000 for the development of a new supermarket. The report is 
annexed as appendix 4. The company has already purchased the neighbouring Fire 
Station and two semi-detached houses to assemble a larger site which will 
accommodate their proposed store.

3.2 The plan referred to in the earlier report is in appendix 1 and titled “Land at Arrowe 
Park Road, Upton”. The red edging, which denotes the extent of land proposed for 
sale, at the north eastern boundary, follows a footpath which runs from Big Meadow 
Road to Upton Road, which was assumed to be a natural boundary for the site. Lidl 
has advised that its offer was for the land shown edged red on the attached which is 
labelled “revised plan” and annexed as appendix 2, which includes the footpath and 
a small area on land beyond.  

3.3 This difference in plans has only recently been identified and Lidl were asked to 
consider if they could develop based on the lesser area. However, Lidl have 
commenced discussions with the Council’s Planning Officers as part of the planning 
process and it is clear from these discussions that the larger area is required to 
deliver the scheme. In particular, this location is required to accommodate sufficient 
parking spaces to service the store, and at the same time incorporate adequate 
landscaping to meet planning requirements. Lidl has provided its latest layout plan 
which shows the minimum area they require for the scheme. This plan is included in 
appendix 3, but Members should note that this plan is still subject to further 
discussions as part of the planning process and should be considered as indicative 
at this stage.

3.4 The earlier report makes reference to the requirement to appropriate the use of the 
land to planning purposes and also the need to advertise an intention to dispose of 
open space. These requirements will still be relevant and will need to be applied to 
the larger site. The closure of one of the footpaths will still be required, but the larger 
site means that the footpath leading from Big Meadow Road to Upton Road will 
remain, but will need to be diverted around the site.

Page 30



3.5 Members are therefore asked to consider approval to the new plan being applied to 
the terms agreed in the earlier report in order that the scheme can be delivered and 
the sale can proceed.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The sale will generate a capital receipt of £820,000 plus a contribution towards the 
Council’s costs. This receipt contributes to the capital receipts target included within 
the 2020/21 budget as approved at full Council on 2 March 2020. If the sale is not 
approved and the receipt not generated, this will result in a further pressure in the 
2020/21 budget and savings or increased income will have to be found elsewhere 
within the Council’s budgets to offset it.

4.2 The resultant development will generate Business Rates based on an assessment of 
the building by the Valuation Office once constructed

4.3 A sale of the site would remove the maintenance liability, albeit relatively minor.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The Council is obliged to obtain the best price reasonably obtainable under s 123 of 
the Local Government Act 1972. The provisionally negotiated price reflects the 
current proposal which combines the site with the other non-Council owned sites and 
is considered to be well in excess of its value in isolation and is therefore considered 
to be best price.

5.2 The sale and appropriation will be advertised by Public Notice and any objections will 
be considered.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

6.1 There are no IT or staffing implications arising from the disposal of this land.

6.2 The approach from Lidl GB Ltd. has created value from a hitherto landlocked and 
inaccessible site of nil value.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 Failure to complete the deal will result in the potential loss of a windfall capital receipt 
of £820,000.

7.2 The successful appropriation of the land may give rise to a claim for compensation 
from Magenta Living but the likelihood is considered to be slight.  In any case, it has 
been agreed with Lidl GB Ltd. that the Company will indemnify the Council against 
any such claim.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 The sale and appropriation of the site will be advertised by way of Public Notice as 
required under the provisions of the Local Government Act 1972.

Page 31



8.2 The sale is subject to planning consent and the public will be consulted as part of 
that process.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 There is no relevance to equality.

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 The sale of this site will result in the loss of some amenity space as referred to in 
paragraph 3.4 of the report.  The new food store will be built in accordance with 
current energy efficiency legislation.

REPORT AUTHOR: Steve McMorran
(Steve McMorran)
telephone:  0151 666 3891
email:  stevemcmorran@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 site plan - Land at Arrowe Park road
Appendix 2 site plan – Revised Plan
Appendix 3 site plan – Lidl Layout Plan
Appendix 4 Earlier Delegated Member Report of 24 October 2019.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Negotiated heads of terms

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Delegated Member Decision – Sale of Land at Arrowe 

Park Road, Upton

24 October 2019

Page 32



Land at
Arrowe Park Road
Upton
Wirral

© Crown copyright and database rights 2018 Ordnance Survey 100019803. 
You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

© Crown copyright material is reproduced with the permission of Land Registry under delegated authority from the Controller of HMSO.

Scale: 1:1250 

Date: 12.07.2019
35

Ford Way Mews

51

2 55

10

11

1

C
O
L
B
E
R
T
 C
L
O
S
E

40

35

164

174

168

170

15

260

17

Job Centre

LB

2
4
2

2
4
4

7

ROA
D

250

238

248

Police

2
0
02
1
0

2
2
4

2
2
8

2
3
2

2
2
6

2
3
6

2
3
0

2
3
4

240

5
7

1

5
5

246

LEESWOOD

26.2m

5
3

5
1

5
2

A
R
R
O
W
E
 P
A
R
K
 R
O
A
D

W
a
rd
 B
d
y

23.5m

Fire Station

212

Station

2
1
4

H
O
S
K
IN
G
 C
L
O
S
E

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Notes

2

12
9

57

5 9

2

Office

4

10
7

1

7
1

14

16

11
9

55

11
7

Sorting

86

11

ShelterEl

Police
Station

35

12

40

4

Sta
Sub

3

11

15

21

27

El Sub Sta

14
12a

552
10

11

1

2

1

2
14

15

61

260
250

18

El Sub Sta

Job Centre

50

35

17

144

51

21
0

25

28
2

62

23

152

272

51

22
4

38

73

67

1

212

1

53

23a

Fire Station

162

Ford Way Mews

49

21a 45

27

65
5

41

53

35

20
0

74

52

758 5

28
6

29
2

7 78 3

28
4

29
4

28
8

29
0

168
170

51
57

7981

164
174

166
172

24
2

24
4

23
0

23
4

240
246

22
8

23
2

22
6

23
6

238
248

El Sub Sta

C
O

LB
ER

T 
C

LO
SE

LEESWOOD ROAD

ARR
O

W
E PAR

K RO
AD

BI G
 M

EADO
W

 RO
AD

SLINGSBY DRIVE

SULLIVAN AVENUE

H
O

SKIN G
 C

LO
S E

LB

26.2m

23.5m

21.3m

28.7m

  18 Mar 2020Production Date:   when printed at A4Scale

You are not permitted to copy, distribute, or sell any of this data to 3rd parties in any form.

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 10019803.
Information produced by HM Land Registry © Crown copyright 2020.

1250

User NameRevised Plan

N

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Ancillary 245 m²

Warehouse (Inc. Freezer & Chiller) 360 m²

Sales Area 1256 m²

GIA (Without Canopy) 1899 m²

SCHEDULE

GEA (Without Canopy) 1997 m²

Internal Wall 38 m²

LIDL - ECO STORE (AS MEASURED - AREAS TBC WITH ECO SPEC RELEASE):

Standard Parking Spaces

Disabled Parking Spaces

P&C Parking Spaces

Total Parking Spaces

Motorcycle Parking Spaces

Total Site Area Red (Approximate)

EVC (Electric Vehicle Charging) Spaces

7354 m²

77 spaces

10 spaces

9 spaces

0 spaces

2 spaces

98 spaces

N

FREEZER
(INTERNAL AREA)

CHILLER
(INTERNAL AREA)

BALER

WAREHOUSEUTILITYI.T. ROOMCANTEENCLOAKROOMCASH ROOMMANAGERS
OFFICE

STORAGEENTRANCE
LOBBY

CUSTOMER
W.C.

BAKERY
PREPARATION

AREA

STAFF
W.C.

STAFF
W.C.

SALES

DELIVERY
AREA

21
2

26
.2

mARROWE PARK ROAD23
.5

m Ward Bdy
230
234

226
236

228
232

224

240
246

238
248

250

242
244

51

21
0

ASSUMED
BOUNDARY
LINE, LEGALS
TO CONFIRM

SECONDARY
PUBLIC FOOTPATH
ACCESS/EGRESS

ALL ABOVE AND BELOW
GROUND CONSTRAINTS TO
BE IDENTIFIED BY LIDL

2.5m FROM BOUNDARY

PROPOSED
CYCLE PARKING.

TOTAL PARKING SPACES: 98

01

75
00

10
00

0
65

00

10800

9500

4700

25
00

2500

2500

12
00

0

8000

<<<< MOE ROUTE

PLANT

10
00

0
65

00

2 No. EVC (ELECTRIC
VEHICLE CHARGING)
PARKING BAYS & FEEDER
PILLAR INSTALLED

EXISTING ACCESS/EGRESS
ADJUSTED TO SUIT DESIGN
STANDARDS TO HIGHWAY
CONSULTANTS DESIGN DETAILS.

21
35

0
FI

N
IS

H 
TO

 F
IN

IS
H

58800
TO BACK OF GLAZING MULLIONS

58500
TO PACKING BENCH

82
50

0212

13

18

44

54

55 70
71 77

84 78
85

EXISTING TREE
TO BE RETAINED.

98

FLAG
POLE

6500

65
00

6500

LANDSCAPING

LANDSCAPING

6500
21

28

32

33

43

47
00

25
00

4700

4800

6500

20

29

4700

25
00

25
00

UPTON FIRE STATION

17154

AD 009_REV C

GAP

OCT 2019

Lidl GB Ltd, Eastgate Way, Manor
Park, Runcorn, WA7 1NT 

PROPOSED SITE LAYOUT
Rev Date Revised By Checked By

Notes

IMPORTANT INFORMATION
Dimensions to be confirmed on site prior to start of works and ODAS to be informed of discrepancies
immediately. No dimensions to be scaled from this drawing.
All materials and works are to be carried out in accordance with current British Standards, Planning
Approval, current Building Regulations and Codes of Practice.
Party Wall Act - Notices under the Party Wall Act are to be served by the property owner or appointed
third party by property owner.
Health and Safety - CDM 2015 Regulations apply to all construction works to be carried out and apply
to designers, contractors and the client. As such all parties have duties under these regulations.

A 18.02.20 DRAWING UPDATED TO SHOW ADDITIONAL GAP ---
FOOTPATHS, ZEBRA CROSSINGS AND
RETAINMENT OF EXISTING TREE

Client:

Project Name:

Drawing Title:

Drawing Status:

Project No:

Drawing No:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Date:

Scale @ A3:Description

Revisions

One Design Architectural Services Ltd
Unit 1 Merchants Quay,

Phase II, Ashley Lane, Shipley,
West Yorkshire, BD17 7DB

Tel: 01274 591188
www.onedesignarchs.com
mail@onedesignarchs.com

Registered in England & Wales No: 8355643

1:500
SKETCH SCHEME

B 19.02.20 TPO TREE RETAINED DWG GAP
FLAG POLES OMITTED/RELOCATED
LANDSCAPE MARGINS ADDED, PARKING &
CROSSINGS REVISED, FOOTPATH ADDED

C 27.02.20 REAR CAR PARK LAYOUT REVISED DWG GAP
TOGETHER WITH FOOTPATH LINE
NEW & EXISTING PATH LINES SHOWN
HATCHED. NOTES REVISED.

---

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



DELEGATED DECISION

REPORT TITLE SALE OF LAND AT ARROWE PARK ROAD, UPTON
REPORT OF CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF DELIVERY SERVICES 

AND ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE

REPORT SUMMARY

This report seeks approval to the sale of land at Arrowe Park Road, Upton.

The sale will support the Wirral Plan and its delivery through the generation of a capital 
receipt and promotion of economic activity.

The matter affects the Upton Ward and is not a key decision.

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That:

1. the public open space land edged red on the attached plan at Arrowe Park Road, 
Upton (“the Site”), be declared surplus to Council requirements;

2. the Corporate Director of Delivery Services/Assistant Chief Executive be authorised 
to agree a sale of the Site to Lidl GB Ltd. at £820,000 plus fees. 

3. the Site is appropriated from primarily residential use to planning purposes pursuant 
to Section 122 of the Local Government Act (LGA) 1972, and disposed of provided 
no objections are made.

4. the adopted footpath that runs through the Site is stopped up under Section 247 of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 if planning consent is granted for the 
proposed development. 

5. if the Site is appropriated as recommended that the Council will advertise the sale of 
the public open space as required by law

6. any objections to the appropriation and/or disposal be considered and determined by 
the Corporate Director of Delivery Services/Assistant Chief Executive in consultation 
with the Portfolio Holder.

Page 39



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

To facilitate the sale of land to the discount food operator, Lidl GB Ltd., to enable the 
Company to assemble a site for the development of a new supermarket and to 
generate a capital receipt.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

The land is currently inaccessible for development and comprises a wide grass verge 
fronting Arrowe Park Road at its junction with Ford Road which the Council maintains. 
In view of this, and the amount of the consideration on offer, no other options have 
been considered.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The discount food operator, Lidl GB Ltd., is in the process of assembling a site at the 
junction of Arrowe Park Road and Ford Road, Upton, located opposite the 
Sainsbury’s superstore.

3.2 The Company has agreed the purchase of the Fire Station and the two semi-detached 
houses adjoining which were originally occupied by fire station staff.  These are 
shown shaded red and blue respectively on the attached plan.

3.3 In order to complete the land assembly exercise, the Company wish to acquire the 
Council’s land shown edged red which is currently inaccessible for development 
comprising a wide grass verge extending to 0.3 Ha (0.75 acres), though the land is 
classified as primarily residential in the Unitary Development Plan.

3.4 Following negotiations, a sale price of £820,000 has been agreed subject to planning 
consent and satisfactory ground and site surveys. Should terms be approved, the 
Council will enter into a contract with Lidl GB Ltd. conditional on planning consent.

3.5 The Council land has an adopted footpath running through it which will need to be 
stopped up. Further, as it is open to public access, the land would be classed as 
Public Open Space as defined in the Planning Acts and, as such, its disposal will 
have to be advertised in the local press in accordance with the Local Government Act 
1972. Authority is sought to enable the Corporate Director of Delivery 
Services/Assistant Chief Executive in consultation with the Portfolio Holder to 
consider any objections and determine the disposal.

3.6 The land in Council ownership is subject to general third-party rights in favour of 
Magenta Living which were imposed as standard clauses when the stock transfer of 
Council housing was completed on 2005. The site adjoins former Council houses and 
all such sites retained in Council ownership which bordered land transferred was 
burdened with rights in favour of Magenta.

3.7 Due to the need to over-ride these rights, the land will be appropriated from primarily 
residential use to planning purposes pursuant to Section 122 of the LGA 1972. 
Appropriation occurs where the Council holds land for one particular purpose and 
makes a declaration that it is going to hold the land for a different purpose.  This will 

Page 40



facilitate its disposal for the proposed use in accordance with the provisions of Section 
233 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 which indicates that “where any land 
has been acquired or appropriated by a local authority for planning purposes and is 
for the time being held by them for those purposes the authority may dispose of the 
land to such person, in such manner and subject to such conditions as appear to 
them to be expedient in order to secure the best use of that land”. This may give rise 
to objections as the intention to appropriate has to be advertised in the local press. 
Authority is sought therefore to enable the Corporate Director of Delivery 
Services/Assistant Chief Executive in consultation with the Portfolio Holder to 
consider any objections and determine the appropriation.

3.8 The successful appropriation of the land may give rise to a claim for compensation 
from Magenta Living but the likelihood is considered to be remote as Magenta own 
no developable land in the vicinity. In any case, it has been agreed with Lidl GB Ltd. 
that the Company will indemnify the Council against any such claim.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The sale will generate a capital receipt of £820,000 plus fees.

4.2 The cost of maintaining the land will be saved.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The Council is obliged to obtain the best price reasonably obtainable under s 123 of 
the Local Government Act 1972. The provisionally negotiated price reflects the 
current proposal which combines the site with the other non-Council owned sites and 
is considered to be well in excess of its value in isolation and is therefore considered 
to be best price.

5.2 The sale and appropriation will be advertised by Public Notice and any objections will 
be considered by the Corporate Director of Delivery Services/Assistant Chief 
Executive in consultation with the Portfolio Holder who will then have the authority to 
consider any objections and determine the disposal and appropriation.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

6.1 There are no IT or staffing implications arising from the disposal of this land.

6.2 The approach from Lidl GB Ltd. has created value from a hitherto landlocked and 
inaccessible site of nil value.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 Failure to complete the deal will result in the potential loss of a windfall capital receipt 
of £820,000.

7.2 The successful appropriation of the land may give rise to a claim for compensation 
from Magenta Living but the likelihood is considered to be slight. In any case, it has 
been agreed with Lidl GB Ltd. that the Company will indemnify the Council against 
any such claim.

Page 41



8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 The sale and appropriation of the site will be advertised by way of Public Notice as 
required under the provisions of the Local Government Act 1972.

8.2 The sale is subject to planning consent and the public will be consulted as part of that 
process.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal been reviewed with regard to equality?
No because there is no relevance to equality.

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 The legal transaction to sell the land of itself will have no environment or climate 
implications.

11.0 PLANNING IMPLICATIONS

11.1 The site, which is a landscaped amenity buffer between housing, the fire station and 
the Upton by-pass, is designated as part of a Primarily Residential Area in the 
Council’s Unitary Development Plan (UDP). The Council is currently completing a 
review of development options after public consultation in September 2018 on 
proposed allocations for housing, employment and mixed uses, including sites for 
potential further investigation in the Green Belt. The site’s designation is unlikely to 
change in the emerging Local Plan, which will need to address the need for 
development up to 2035 before it can be adopted.

11.2 UDP Policy HS15 only permits small scale non-residential development that would 
not be: inappropriate to surrounding development, detrimental to the character of the 
area, and cause a nuisance in respect of noise, parking and deliveries. Any future 
proposal for retail development would need to be assessed against UDP Policies 
SH9 & SH10 and Policy CS29 in the Core Strategy Proposal Submission Draft 
(2012), which would implement the national sequential test for town centre uses. The 
protection to be given to existing trees and the impact on highway safety and traffic 
management issues in the locality would also need to be considered under the terms 
of UDP Policy GR7 and Policy TR9.

REPORT AUTHOR:     Tony Simpson
Asset Manager
telephone:  0151 666 3892
email:  tonysimpson@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

Plan

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Page 42

mailto:xxxxx@wirral.gov.uk


SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 07 October 2020

REPORT TITLE: APPOINTMENT OF SUB COMMITTEE MEMBERS
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR: LAW AND GOVERNANCE (MONITORING 

OFFICER)

REPORT SUMMARY

The purpose of the report is to enable the Policy and Resources Committee, in accordance 
with the relevant statutory provisions and the terms of the Constitution, to appoint Members 
to the four Sub-Committees of the Policy and Resources Committee for 2020 / 2021, these 
are:

 The Senior Officer Appointments and Staffing Sub-Committee
 The Local Plan Sub-Committee
 The Finance and Procurement Sub-Committee
 The Shareholder Board

Unless appointed as full members; the Leaders and Deputy Leaders of the political groups 
represented on the Council are entitled to attend meetings of all Committees, Sub-
Committees and Panels, with the right to speak at the invitation of the Chair (Part 3 (B) 
Section 1 of the Council’s constitution).

The decisions of the Committee regarding this report are not considered to be Key 
Decisions.

RECOMMENDATION/S

The Policy and Resources Committee is requested to:- 

(1) (a) confirm that the Senior Officer Appointments and Staffing Sub-Committee be         
appointed for 2020-21 with the terms of reference identified and will consist of:

(i) the leader (Chair of Policy & Resources Committee), or in their absence 
the Deputy Leader (Vice-Chair), who shall chair the Sub-Committee;

(ii) a member from each of the other Political Groups represented on the 
Policy & Resources Committee; and

Page 45

Agenda Item 8



(iii) the Chair, or in their absence the Vice-Chair, of the Policy & Services 
Committee with terms of reference most closely associated with the post 
concerned (or if that committee concerned is deemed to be the Policy & 
Resources Committee then the Deputy Leader (Vice-Chair).

(b) appoint Members to serve on the Senior Officer Appointments and Staffing Sub-
Committee in 2020-21, including the appointment of the Chair and named deputies.

(2) (a) confirm that the Local Plan Sub-Committee be appointed for 2020-21 with the 
terms of reference identified with 5 Members of the Policy and Resources 
Committee.

(b) appoint Members to serve on the Local Plan Sub-Committee in 2020-21, 
including the appointment of named deputies.

(3) (a) confirm that the Finance Sub-Committee be appointed for 2020-21 with the terms 
of reference identified with 5 Members of the Policy and Resources Committee.

(b) appoint Members to serve on the Finance and Procurement Sub-Committee in 
2020-21, including the appointment of the Chair and named deputies.

(4) (a) confirm that the Shareholder Board be appointed for 2020-21 with the terms of 
reference identified with 3 Members of the Policy and Resources Committee.

(b) appoint Members to serve on the Shareholder Board in 2020-21, including the 
appointment of named deputies.

Page 46



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

1.1 To enable the appointment of Members to the four Sub-Committees of the Policy 
and Resources Committee as listed in 3.1 below.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 Part 2, Article 6.4 (iii) of the constitution states: sub-committees will normally be 
constituted of five (5) members, which may be altered to accommodate the overall 
political balance calculation, or be constituted of such other number as the parent 
Committee decides.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The Sub-Committees of the Policy and Resources Committee are described as laid 
out below in the Constitution (Part 3 – Responsibility for Functions (B) Committee 
Terms of Reference):

Senior Officer Appointments & Staffing Sub-Committee

(a) A Sub-Committee of members of the Policy and Resources Committee, with 
delegated authority to recommend or make appointments and related matters 
in respect of chief officers and deputy chief officers, as set out at Part 4(7) of 
the Constitution, together with oversight of employment policies, terms and 
conditions.

(b) The Sub-Committee will not be appointed in accordance with the political 
balance rules (as agreed by Council at its meeting on 28 September 2020) but 
will consist of: 
(i) the Leader (Chair of Policy & Resources Committee), or in their 

absence the Deputy Leader (Vice-Chair), who shall chair the Sub-
Committee;

(ii) a member from each of the other Political Groups represented on the 
Policy & Resources Committee; and

(iii) the Chair, or in their absence the Vice-Chair, of the Policy & Services 
Committee with terms of reference most closely associated with the 
post concerned (or if that committee concerned is deemed to be the 
Policy & Resources Committee then the Deputy Leader (Vice-Chair).

Finance and Procurement Sub-Committee

A Sub-Committee of five (5) members of the Policy and Resources Committee, 
subject to political balance, with responsibility for development of the Council’s 
budget and for oversight of the Council’s procurement framework.

Local Plan Steering Sub-Committee

A Sub-Committee of five (5) members of the Policy and Resources Committee,

Page 47



politically balanced, with responsibility for the Council’s functions to formulate the
policies and strategies that together will form the Council’s other spatial planning
documents (Local Plan).
This Sub-Committee is time limited until the adoption of the Local Plan in 
development 2020/21.

Shareholder Board

A Sub-Committee of three (3) members of the Policy and Resources Committee,
subject to political balance, with delegated authority to exercise responsibility for
the Council’s functions as corporate shareholder of a company, or group of
companies or a limited liability partnership. The Sub-Committee will be organised, 
and will also meet as a working group, alongside officers and advisors in accordance
with the Council’s adopted Code of Practice for the Governance of Council Interests
in Companies at Part 5(7) of this Constitution.

3.2 Proportionality:

Members must have regard to the requirements of section 15 of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989, and the relevant regulations (which deal with 
political balance on committees and sub-committees), and the terms of the High 
Court judgment in the case of R v Brent LBC ex-parte Gladbaum and Wood (which 
requires the relevant parent committee, rather than the Council, to appoint members 
of sub-committees and panels).

Part 2, Article 6.4 (iii) of the constitution states: sub-committees will normally be 
constituted of five (5) members, which may be altered to accommodate the overall 
political balance calculation, or be constituted of such other number as the parent 
Committee decides.

The political balance of these Sub-Committees, if kept to a minimum of 5 members 
per Sub-Committee should be: 

2 Labour Members
2 Conservative Members 
1 Liberal Democrat Member

Shareholder Board is recommended to be kept to a minimum of 3 members and the 
political balance should be:

2 Labour Members
1 Conservative Member

It was a decision of Council to change the requirements for political balance for the 
Senior Officer Appointments & Staffing Sub-Committee and that membership would 
be:

5x Group Leaders or their nominees
1x Chair of the relevant Policy Committee that will be most affected by the 
appointment.

Page 48



3.3 The Local Plan, Finance and Shareholder Board Sub-Committees are subject to 
political balance regulation (S15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989). 

Part 2, Section 6.4 (iii) of the constitution states:

“Sub-committees will normally be constituted of five (5) members, which may be 
altered to accommodate the overall political balance calculation, or be constituted of 
such other number as the parent Committee decides;”

It is noted that the Senior Officer Appointments and Staffing Sub-Committee’s 
primary function is to make appointments or recommendations to Council on 
appointments regarding chief officers of the Council. In its alternative form the sub-
committee exists to deal with disciplinary matters and appeals. There was 
considered to be an optimum size for such sub-committees and it was unanimously 
agreed at Annual Council on 28 September 2020 that this Sub-Committee be 
exempt from political proportionality. It was felt by all group leaders that it was 
important that all political groups on the Council had a vote on these matters.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The Chairs of the Finance and Procurement Sub-Committee and the Local Plan 
Sub-Committee are both entitled to a special responsibility allowance (SRA) of 
£4,800 under Part 6 of the Constitution – Members’ Allowances Scheme. These 
funds are accounted for within the Members’ Allowances Scheme.

It should be noted that under the Members’ Allowances Scheme, no councillor shall 
be entitled to receive more than one payment by way of a special responsibility 
allowance. Any councillor who is already receiving an SRA as Chair of a Policy and 
Services Committee, Group Leader etc shall not be entitled to additional payment as 
Chair of either of the Sub-Committees mentioned above as per paragraph 4.3 of the 
Members’ Allowances Scheme.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The Council must allocate seats on committees and sub committees so as to give 
effect to the political balance rules. The rules for the allocation of seats are set out in 
Sections 15 and 16 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and the Local 
Government Committee and Political Group Regulations 1990. The Act provides four 
principles concerning political representation that must be observed. The four 
principles are:-   

 
(a) That not all seats are allocated to the same political party.    

(b) That the political group with the majority of seats should have the majority of 
seats on each committee.   

 
(c) Subject to (a) and (b) that the total number of seats allocated to political 

groups on all committees (to which Section 15 of the Act applies), shall be in 
the same proportion as the total number of seats on the authority held by 
each political group.   

 

Page 49



(d) Subject to (a) to (c) that the number of seats allocated to each political group 
on a committee (to which Section 15 of the Act applies), shall be the same as 
the proportion of the total number of seats on the authority held by each 
political group. 

The legislation provides that the Council may make alternative arrangements to the 
'proportionality' principles within this report only by a unanimous vote.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

6.1 There are no resource implications arising directly from this report.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 There are no direct risks arising from this report.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 It is for Members of the Policy and Resources Committee to decide how they wish to 
allocate places on the Sub-Committees.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure 
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity.

9.2 There are no equality implications arising directly from this report.

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 There are no environment and climate implications arising directly from this report.

REPORT AUTHOR: Steve Fox
Head of Democratic & Member Services
telephone:  0151 691 8145
email:  stevefox@wirral.gov.uk

BACKGROUND PAPERS

The Constitution of the Council
Members’ Allowances Scheme

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
None N/A

Page 50



POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 7 October 2020

REPORT TITLE: 2020/21 & 2021/22 COVID-19 BUDGET POSITION 
STATEMENT

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

REPORT SUMMARY

The report provides a summary of the Council’s financial position following the Covid-19 
pandemic.  The report highlights the impact on the Council’s 2020/21 and 2021/22 budget 
following the onset of Covid-19 and the actions in place to mitigate the deficit. The report 
also describes the support available from HM Treasury in mitigating the deficit and asks the 
Committee for approval to submit a formal application for support and highlights the options 
available if this support is not forthcoming.

The report provides information on the additional government funding provided to support 
the Council’s emergency response to Covid-19.

This matter affects all Wards within the Borough.

This is a key decision

RECOMMENDATION/S

(1) That the Policy & Resources Committee recommends to Council that an additional 
£99,731,884 be added to the budget for 2020/21 as a result of additional one off 
Government funding received since the 2020/21 budget was set on 2 March 2020 to 
either be spent or passported to support the emergency response to Covid-19 or 
returned to the Government by 31 March 2021. This is described in Section 5 of the 
report.

(2) That Policy and Resources Committee support the formal application to MHCLG to 
request a capitalisation directive from HM Treasury on the Council’s behalf. This is 
described in Section 6 of the report.

Page 51

Agenda Item 9



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 The Council has received £99,731,884 Government funding to support the 
emergency response to Covid-19. This comprised funding directly for use by the 
Council in funding the Councils emergency response of £32,500,399 and funding to 
be passported to other organisations on behalf of the Government of £67,231,484 as 
described in paragraph 5.1. 

1.2 The funding was received after the 2020/21 budget was set on 2 March 2020.  
Therefore, retrospective Council approval is required to include this one-off funding 
as part of the Council’s 2020/21 budget and to approve the spending in accordance 
with the Government guidelines.  

1.3 The Council is currently forecasting an in-year deficit of around £22m as a direct and 
indirect result of the impact of Covid-19.  MHCLG have stated that Councils can ask 
them to request a capitalisation directive from HM Treasury on their behalf to 
capitalise costs resulting from the impact of Covid-19.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 The Committee could not recommend to Council to approve the changes to the 
Council budget, however Full Council must approve any changes to the approved 
budget as set out in the Constitution.

2.2 The Committee could not take the decision to approve the submission of the 
capitalisation directive to MHCLG, however this would result in the Council not being 
able to balance it’s budget for 2020/21 and could result in the issuing of a s114 
notice. 

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 As part of the annual budget setting, monitoring, and reporting process, the last 
report received by Members regarding the 2020/21 budget position was the Quarter 
1 monitoring report that was presented at Cabinet on 27 July. The Quarter 2 
monitoring report is not due to be presented to Members until November 2020 so it is 
pertinent to update Members at this first Policy and Resources Committee of the 
current position regarding the Council’s budget for 2020/21 and 2021/22.

Page 52



4.0 UPDATED COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21

4.1 In compliance with their statutory responsibility and in accordance with the provisions 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, the Council set and approved a 
balanced budget on 2 March 2020. This represented a total net budget for the 
Council of £304.7m. The breakdown of the budget by Directorate was as follows:

Directorate £m
Regeneration & Place 38.275
Neighbourhoods 55.690
Children, Families & Education 98.823
Adult Care and Health 105.904
Resources, including Law & Governance and 
Chief Executive’s Office

6.005

Total 2020/21 Net Budget 304.697

4.2 Since the budget was agreed the global Covid-19 pandemic struck and the Council’s 
response saw emergency decisions that resulted in changes being made to the 
approved budget of March 2020. These changes require formal approval by Council 
as the Council’s spending for the year 2020/21 will exceed the Budget set by Council 
in March 2020. This is highlighted in Section 5.

4.3 Following the Council’s Chief Officer restructure agreed on 2 March 2020, some 
functions moved Directorates. As a result, the current Directorate budget structure is 
as follows:

Directorate £m
Regeneration & Place 36.623
Neighbourhoods 60.686
Children, Families & Education 81.014
Adult Care and Health 106.912
Resources 11.477
Law & Governance 6.611
Chief Executive’s Office 1.374
Total 2020/21 Net Budget 304.697

5.0 WIRRAL BOROUGH COVID-19 FUNDING

5.1 Since the pandemic arose, the Council has had to ensure the services it provides to 
respond to the emergency are adequately resourced. The Government has made 
funds available to enable this to happen, alongside several other sources of funding 
that the Council was paid to passport on as required by the Government. The value 
of funding the Council has received is included in the table below. Following the 
table, descriptions of the funding sources are also provided. All the funding will either 
be spent, passported or returned to the Government by 31 March 2021.

Page 53



Funding Title Received for 
Council use

£

Received and 
Passported 

£
(a) Emergency Covid-19 Funding (three tranches) 23,937,380 0
(b) Council Tax Hardship Fund 3,900,000 0
(c) Emergency Fund for Rough Sleepers 4,000 0
(d) Care Home Infection Control Fund* 1,185,880 3,557,641
(e) Re-opening High Streets Safely Fund 286,292 0
(f) Small Business Grant Fund and Retail, 

Hospitality and Leisure Grant Fund ** 0
61,014,250

(g) Local Authority Discretionary Grant Funding 0 2,637,750
(h) Test and Trace Funding 2,733,018 0
(i) Local Authority Emergency Assistance Grant 

for Food and Essential Supplies 453,829 0
(j) Business Improvement District Funding 0 21,844

Total Funding 32,500,399 67,231,485

(a) Emergency Covid-19 Fund – three tranches

On 19 March, the Government announced £1.6bn of additional national funding (Tranche 1) 
to support local authorities in responding to COVID-19. The funding was not ring fenced and 
was intended to help authorities address pressures they are facing across all service areas 
as a result of the pandemic.

For the first tranche of funding the allocation to individual local authorities was based on the 
Adults Relative Needs Formula (RNF) for £1.4bn of the national allocation, with the 
remaining £200m based on the 2013/14 Settlement Funding Assessment (SFA). 

On 18 April a further £1.6bn of national funding was made available by the Government to 
support local authorities in dealing with the immediate effects of the pandemic (Tranche 2). 
Of this amount £6m was top-sliced nationally for a contingency fund for the Home Office to 
support fire authorities with the remainder allocated on a per capita basis using ONS 
population projections. It did not take into account the demand or need for services. 

On 2 July further national funding of £500m was announced to reimburse Local Authorities 
for direct COVID-19 related expenditure (Tranche 3). The allocation used for the third 
tranche was a combination of the allocations of the previous two tranches.

(b) Council Tax Hardship Fund 

A Council Tax Hardship Fund was announced as part of the Government’s March 2020 
Budget. This funding would allow more than 10,000 people currently in receipt of working-
age Local Council Tax Support in 2020/21 in Wirral to receive a further discount of up to 
£150 from their Council Tax Bill. In addition, some of the allocation is expected to boost the 
support available to the most in-need residents. 

(c) Emergency Support for Rough Sleepers 

A total of £3.2m nationally was allocated by the government to help rough sleepers to self-
isolate. The Council can claim a maximum of £0.004m which was calculated based on the 

Page 54



number of rough sleepers reported in the Autumn 2019 snapshot. The fund is to assist local 
authorities with funding to provide accommodation and support to people who are at high 
risk or have been diagnosed with COVID-19. 

(d) Care Home Infection Control Fund 

On 9 June, the government announced a national allocation of £600m for an Infection 
Control Fund. The fund is to support adult social care providers to reduce the rate of 
transmission in and between care homes and support wider workforce resilience. The 
allocation between authorities has been based on the number of care beds with an area 
cost adjustment applied. 

The guidance provided was that each care home should receive an amount per Care 
Quality Commission registered care beds. The amount per bed represents 75% of the 
funding. The remaining 25% must be used for infection control measures, however local 
authorities are able to allocate this based on need and could include support for domiciliary 
care workforce measures.

* In September, a further £500m national funding was announced for further infection 
control measures to support further local enforced restrictions. Notification of this allocation 
to Wirral has not yet been received but could be estimated at around £3.5m  

(e) Reopening High Streets Safely Fund 

On 24 May the Government announced £50m nationally to support the recovery of high 
streets. The fund is to provide Council’s additional funding to support business communities 
with measures that enable safe trading in public places. The fund had particular focus on 
high streets as well as other public places at the heart of towns. The Council has worked in 
accordance with the guidance issued by the Government when developing the scheme. 

(f) Small Business Grant Fund and Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant Fund

From April the Council delivered grants to businesses, including funding of £10k for 
businesses currently in receipt of small business rate relief or rural rate relief, and for 
businesses in the retail, hospitality, and leisure sectors with a rateable value of up to 
£15,000. For businesses in retail, hospitality and leisure, a grant of £25k was available 
where their rateable value is between £15,001 and £50,999. The Department of Business, 
Energy and Industry Strategy (BEIS) provided funding of £63.6m to Wirral to meet these 
grant payments. This total included the allocation for the Local Authority Discretionary 
Grants Fund.  

** This is the only element of funding that if not able to be spent on the areas included 
within the Government guidance, must be returned to the Government. Of the total 
£63.652m received, £11.2m will have to be returned to Government as despite the 
Council’s best efforts to ensure all eligible businesses received a grant, this remains 
unspent. 

Page 55



(g) Local Authority Discretionary Grants Fund 

Announced in May, the Local Authority Discretionary Grant Fund provided a fund equivalent 
to 5% of the unspent Small Business Grant Fund and Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant 
Fund (as described above). Local Authorities had an element of discretion in awarding 
grants from this fund within guide criterion set by the Government. All successful 
businesses have received a standard grant payment of up to £10,000. 

(h) Test and Trace Funding

On 22 May the Government announced £300m of national additional funding for local 
authorities to support them to develop and action their plans to reduce the spread of the 
virus in their area as part of the launch of the wider NHS Test and Trace Service. This 
funding would enable local authorities to develop and implement tailored local COVID-19 
outbreak plans through, for example, funding the recruitment of additional staff where 
required. 

(i) Local Authority Emergency Assistance Grant for Food and Essential Supplies 

The Government announced a further £63m funding nationally, for Local Authorities in July 
specifically to use to support groups who are helping people struggling to afford food and 
other essentials due to COVID-19.

(j) Business Improvement District Funding

In May the government announced a national £6.1m programme of support for Business 
Improvement Districts to help cover their day to day costs for up to 3 months.

5.2 Places such as Wirral, with existing economic and health inequalities, have been 
disproportionately affected by Covid. This will have a short and longer term impact 
on demand for local services and the financial resilience of the borough. Ongoing 
resources will also be required to continue to address the pandemic locally as well 
as supporting residents and businesses to recover from the indirect health and 
economic consequences of Covid. Furthermore, the recent and increasing number of 
Covid cases recorded in Wirral during the late summer has resulted in the 
implementation of local restrictions commencing on 22nd September 2020. These 
enhanced local measures will continue to exacerbate financial pressures as ongoing 
shortfalls in Council income continue and some local businesses experience curfews 
to trade. MHCLG is carrying out a data collection to gather information on the impact 
COVID-19 is having on local authority finances. 

6.0 2020/21 and 2021/22 CURRENT BUDGET POSITION

6.1 As a result of the pandemic, the year-end forecast for the 2020/21 budget as 
reported at Quarter 1 was an expected deficit of £30m. Since then, further funding 
has been provided by Government and information has been received from 
Government on a compensation scheme for lost income from sales, fees and 
charges as a result of Covid-19.

Page 56



6.2 Taking the new third tranche of funding received of £3.2m and an assumption of £9m 
compensation for lost income from sales, fees and charges, plus some further 
adjustments, the 2020/21 year-end deficit forecast has been reduced to £22m.

6.3 This deficit is made up of (main items): 

 £17m of unachievable original savings from the 2020/21 budget as a result of 
delays in progression caused by Covid.  These are:

o £5.0m new Council model and structure – due to staff being redeployed on 
direct Covid activities and being unable to progress this saving

o £4.55m Contract reviews and renegotiations – due to the fragility of the 
market as a result of Covid

o £3.75m Adult Social Care reviews and efficiencies – due to the increased 
support that has been provided to the Care Sector to ensure it remains 
sustainable throughout Covid

o £1.27m Children’s Looked After Children reductions – due to the inability 
to model looked after children as a result of increasing costs throughout 
lockdown 

o £2.5m New investments and refinancing – due to staff being redeployed 
on direct Covid activities and being unable to progress the saving

o £0.64m Zero Based Budgeting pilot - due to staff being redeployed on 
direct Covid activities and being unable to progress the saving

 £6m residual income losses after an assumption for compensation from the 
government scheme for sales, fees and charges losses

 £2m of unachievable capital receipt sales as a result of delays in progression 
caused by staff being redirected onto direct Covid activities

 -£3m of forecast savings as a result of vacancies

6.4 The Council must take necessary remedial and urgent action to deal with the 
significant deterioration in the financial position and return to a balanced budget 
position. Failure to consider and adopt reduction measures to the 2020/21 budget or 
find further funding from Government or elsewhere within year, will result in the 
issuing of a s.114 notice before year end. 

6.5 To mitigate this, the Council can request permission from MHCLG to apply to HM 
Treasury on the Council’s behalf for a capitalisation directive. This means that the 
Council can charge any unmet 2020/21 and potentially 2021/22 deficits specifically 
incurred as a result of Covid to the capital programme. There would be a resulting 
revenue impact of this as the Council would need to borrow funds to pay for the 
capitalisation, which would need to eventually be repaid. As yet, however, it is not 
known how long the repayment would take place over so it is impossible to identify 
how much the cost of borrowing and the resulting revenue costs would be.

Page 57



6.6 MHCLG have informed the Council that the process to agree a capitalisation 
directive will take some months from the date of application, and there is no 
guarantee that HM Treasury will agree to the request. The approval of a 
capitalisation directive from Government comes with certain conditions that the 
Council will be expected to fulfil first these are:

 A robust assessment of the current budget position and the direct and indirect 
financial impact of Covid-19

 A robust medium term financial recovery strategy to ensure the Council can 
secure a sound financial and sustainable footing

 Assurance that the Council has done everything it can in advance to mitigate the 
budget gap including:

o Drawing down all useable reserves
o Evidencing the requirement for all pressures and growth
o Actioning and accelerating all the plans for savings to be achieved
o Assessing all non-statutory services to determine why they are being 

provided and evidencing what beneficial outcomes they provide

MHCLG also require the Council to have these plans externally validated before the 
submission is provided and the Council has commissioned the Local Government 
Association (LGA) to carry out this work. Work is well underway to produce the 
information MHCLG require and if approved, an initial submission for a capitalisation 
directive will be made this week.

6.7 As a consequence of the forecast deficit in 2020/21 there is an ongoing impact for 
the 2021/22 budget. The unachievable savings that the Council is reporting that it is 
not able to make during 2020/21 are permanent savings and if not made in year, will 
still have to be made in 2021/22.  

6.8 In resetting the Medium Term Financial Plan at Quarter 1 there was a forecast 
budget gap in 2021/22 of £45m. This was made up of (main items)

 £17m carried forward unachievable savings from 2020/21 (See above - If any of 
these can be mitigated in 2020/21, this value will reduce)

 £7m of existing pressures from contract, pay and levy increases  
 £9m new pressures from Adult Social Care, Children’s Social Care and 

Homelessness
 £7m assumed reductions of funding from Public Health
 £5m assumed loss of income from Sales, Fees and Charges continuing as a result 

of Covid

6.9 The total gap at Quarter 1 over the next two years was therefore £67m. As new 
restrictions come into force to mitigate against rising infection numbers of Covid-19, 
this gap is forecast to increase. Work is currently ongoing to quantify this; the 
assumption for loss of income and pressures in Children’s Social Care are already 
estimated to be significantly under forecast.

6.10 If HM Treasury allows the capitalisation directive to be approved, the deficit for 
2020/21 will be significantly reduced and can be offset by utilising some of the 
immediate actions listed below. If however the capitalisation directive is not approved 

Page 58



then the full £22m would need to be found before 31 March 2021 in order to balance 
the budget. There are two options to this scenario:

(a) Utilise all the available savings already found from the options included as immediate 
actions below and if these do not meet the value of the gap, to utilise some of the 
Council’s general fund balances. This is high risk strategy as the general fund 
balances currently stand at £10.6m which is 3.5% of the Council’s net budget and a 
very low figure compared to the former Audit Commission guidance that general fund 
balances should be between 3% - 5% of the Council’s net budget

(b) Issue an emergency budget. This would result in all the available savings already 
found from the options included as immediate actions below being utilised plus an 
immediate implementation of the longer term actions. The impact of this would be an 
immediate ceasing of all non-statutory expenditure until the budget can be balanced.  
If this scenario materialises, a report will be presented to Policy and Resources 
Committee in November outlining this process for approval.

6.11 A rejection of the capitalisation directive would also mean that any savings already 
identified in immediate actions would not then be available for use towards the 
2021/22 budget. This would result in much more difficult decisions being taken on 
the longer term actions, and if these do not meet the 2021/22 budget gap then could 
potentially result in the issuing of a s114 notice.

Budget Deficit Mitigations

6.12 Since June, the Strategic Leadership team have been identifying options to mitigate 
the overall deficit and are working through a programme of immediate actions that 
can be taken now, and longer term actions to ensure the budget is sustainable for 
the future. This ‘twin track’ approach ensures that any immediate quick wins will not 
be implemented at the detriment of any longer terms proposals that will generate 
future income or result in future cost avoidance.

(a) Immediate actions. Status: Green - complete

i. A review of the pressures and growth items that were provided in the 2020/21 
budget to determine whether all these items are necessary and will be fully 
utilised during the year

ii. A review of the budget savings agreed in the 2020/21 budget to determine 
whether, of the proposals that are currently assumed to be unachievable, there is 
scope for a proportion of these to be achieved

iii. A review of the forecast capital receipts programme to determine whether there is 
any opportunity to progress the anticipated sales in 2020/21 that have been 
postponed

iv. A review of the current budget forecast to determine whether, as a result of 
services being paused and buildings being closed due to Covid-19, there are any 
in-year savings that can be identified 

v. A review of earmarked reserves to determine whether any reserves can be used 
in-year to mitigate the budget gap from projects that can be delayed or stopped

Page 59



(i) 2020/21 Growth Items

In March, Council approved £37.52m of pressures and growth items that had been 
calculated from:

 Unmitigated pressures in and before 2019/20 that were continuing into 2020/21
 New pressures as a result of changes to policy, legislation or Member decisions
 New pressures arising from contractual changes e.g. contract inflation, staff pay 

award
 Growth items to meet the Council’s ambitions in the 2025 Wirral Plan

A review of these pressures and growth items is being undertaken and some pressures and 
growth items have been identified as not being fully required. Once these have been 
calculated the budget deficit can be reduced.

(ii) 2020/21 Savings

In March, the approved Budget included £29.85m of savings proposals.  Following an initial 
review of these it was deemed that around £17m of these original savings were 
unachievable as a result of Covid-19.  These are:

 £3.75m in Adult Care & Heath mainly as a result of the fragility of the care market 
due to Covid-19

 £1.27m in Children, Families and Education as a result of not being able to make 
changes to the Looked after Children model

 £2.5m on Treasury Investments and Lobo refinancing as a result capacity of staff to 
progress these due to being seconded onto the Economic Resilience Cell for the first 
6 months of the year

 £5.0m on the new Council Model as a result of the Chief Officer structure not being 
formally announced until June and staff capacity in HR & OD due to working full time 
on the Covid-19 response for the first 6 months of the year

 £4.55m on the Contracts review as a result of the fragility of the market following 
Covid-19 and staff capacity due to working full-time on sourcing and managing PPE

A review of these savings is being undertaken to determine whether there is any scope for 
a proportion of these to be made.  Once these have been calculated the budget deficit can 
be reduced.

(iii) Capital receipts forecast

At the start of the year a forecast of £4.5m was included in the 2020/21 budget approved by 
Council to support the 2020/21 budget gap. This was the only temporary funding included in 
the 2020/21 budget as over the past two years the Council has been implementing a 
programme of reducing any reliance on temporary funding to balance its budget.

At Quarter 1 the capital receipts target was reporting an under forecast of £2.1m due to 
delayed sales as a result of staff being seconded into other areas to support the Covid-19 
emergency response. There is an opportunity now to attempt to progress these sales to 
enable the remaining assumed receipts to be achieved.

Page 60



(iv) Savings arising from Covid-19

As a result of services being paused and buildings remaining closed due to the pandemic, 
there are some areas of the budget that are currently reporting savings. These areas are 
described below:

Workforce costs
Since the pandemic all workforce costs have been paid in line with the approved budget, 
with the exception of a few minor changes e.g. the Maternity Pay Policy changed in July.  
The Council chose not to furlough any staff on the Government furlough scheme as 
guidance from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 
indicated that unless staff pay could be directly attributed to income received from 
commercial activities then the expectation from the Ministry was that Local Government 
would not furlough staff.

The Council does have income generating activities where staff are directly charged e.g. 
leisure, theatre etc however these services do not generate a surplus of income over 
expenditure and are supported by core Council budgets so staff pay cannot be directly 
attributed purely to income generating activities.

As part of the 2020/21 budget process a savings proposal was submitted for £5m savings 
from a new Council model.  This was intended to be realised from a series of restructures, 
starting with the Chief Officer restructure agreed at the Employment and Appointments 
Committee on 2 March 2020 and cascading down through all Directorates. The Chief 
Officer restructure was not announced until June 2020 due to delays caused by Covid and 
as a result, the cascading of restructures has not taken place.  

There is an opportunity for some savings to be made where posts have been held vacant 
for the first 6 months of the year, although there must be caution exercised not to duplicate 
any savings on staffing with a review of the savings that could be delivered from 
implementing the new Council Model, as highlighted above.

Premises Costs
At the date the national lockdown commenced on 24 March 2020. The majority of Council 
buildings were closed.  Some buildings remained open for a short period of time so that 
they could be vacated and alternative arrangements made and two buildings at Sandford 
Street and Cheshire Lines have remained open throughout lockdown for logistical 
operational reasons e.g. cash collection, print office. Most schools also remained open.

All other premises remained closed until lockdown was relaxed when some buildings were 
reopened on a phased basis.  The main ones and first to open included: 

 Birkenhead Town Hall mainly for Registrars 
 Cheshire Lines as a workspace for staff who were unable to work from home
 Floral Pavilion as a workspace and Community hub
 West Kirby Leisure Centre

Since lockdown expenditure has not occurred as expected on building related costs as a 
result of some buildings remaining closed. There is an opportunity therefore for some small 
savings to be made on premises costs.

Page 61



This will only apply to a proportion of buildings however as any savings from premises 
where income generating activities are provided e.g. Leisure Centres and Floral Pavilion 
will have to offset any premises savings from the compensation claim for lost income from 
sales, fees and charges. 

Transport costs
Under the Cabinet Officer Policy Procurement Note PPN 02/20 issued in March 2020, Local 
Authorities were asked to review their supplier portfolio and for suppliers identified as being 
at risk, continue to pay them as normal, even if service was interrupted until at least the end 
of June 2020. As a result, all the council’s transport suppliers were paid as normal in line 
with the original approved budget. These included services for:

 SEN Transport 100% commissioned
 Adult Social Care Transport, 83% commissioned
 Merseytravel Transport Levy 

Payments did continue for the SEN transport at 100% of the contracted rate and services 
were utilised in the distribution of PPE and emergency food relief. As a result, no savings 
have been made on contracted transport costs.

There are other transport costs however where there may be an opportunity for savings to 
be made. Whereas some staff have continued to operate as normal e.g. Children’s Social 
Workers, Parks Staff, Highways Staff and Housing Staff, the majority of council workforce 
have not been travelling for work purposes. As a result, an opportunity arises in these areas 
for some savings.

Office supplies and services costs

In anticipation of a forthcoming lockdown, the Council trialled a working from home day for 
all staff on 18 March 2020. The success of this day resulted in an instruction for all staff to 
continue working in an agile way for the foreseeable future and the majority of staff have 
not returned to an office base since that day. The Council already had a comprehensive 
agile working policy in place and some Council staff were already operating successfully as 
agile workers pre-Covid. A plan was in place to roll this out to all staff over the next two 
years in readiness for a much reduced office base when the Council takes its headquarters 
in Birkenhead Commercial District in 2023.

Following the decision for buildings to remain closed after 18 March 2020 staff have 
successfully managed an accelerated fundamental change in the way they work which will 
never see the staff working in office accommodation at the same levels they were pre-
Covid. This has seen a culture change in the way staff approach an agile or home office as 
there is now little or no requirement for general office expenses or the requirement to print 
documents as was happening before. This means that expenditure on various items of 
supplies and services is not taking place resulting in savings in these areas to be made.

However, the impact of most staff now working from home in very quick succession has 
meant that staff had not had the opportunity to equip their home environments for this way 
of working. The Council has therefore provided items of office equipment e.g. chairs, desks, 
monitors etc to staff upon request to enable them to continue to work in an agile way for the 
foreseeable future. A rise in mobile phone data has also occurred as staff are using mobile 
phones for longer, especially where home broadband connections are poor. Funding has 

Page 62



been made available from the government emergency Covid grant to pay for this and as a 
result does not impact the Council’s 2020/21 budget.

Events

In the 2020/21 budget agreed in March 2020 a growth item was included of £0.5m to 
support the Council’s events programme following the Borough of Culture Year in 2019/20.  
In September 2020 the Wirral Food and Drink Festival and Music Event was planned and 
did not take place. The event has been rescheduled to 2021 and as a result of this no or 
little expenditure will be incurred so will represent a saving. 

(v) Review of Earmarked Reserves

The Council has around £41m of reserves that have been set aside for specific projects and 
will be intended to be spent on those projects. Of this total, £23m reserves are held under 
statute or those that are held on behalf of others and cannot be used to support the 
Council’s budget.  These are:

 School balances £7.9m
 Public Health £1.2m
 Section 106 agreements £0.8m
 Schools capital schemes £0.4m
 Enterprise Zone £0.4m
 Reserves held on behalf of others or ring-fenced grants £1.5m

The total also includes the Insurance fund where the Council self-insures for claims instead 
of using brokers. The value of this fund is £10.8m

Therefore, over half of the reserves held are unable to be re-purposed to support the 
council’s budget. There does present an opportunity however to review the remaining 
reserves to determine whether there is scope to utilise some of these which would reduce 
the budget deficit.

(b) Actions resulting in longer term savings. Status: Amber – being finalised

As part of the normal budget setting process, to ensure a balanced budget can be 
presented to Full Council, savings options proposals are identified to mitigate the budget 
gap. This process usually commences in April to allow proposals to be presented that are 
feasible, achievable, and deliverable.  

For the 2020 – 2024 Medium Term Financial Strategy and 2020/21 Annual Budget, a new 
process was established in autumn 2019. The Financial Sustainability Programme was a 
multi-year programme that was to enable:

 A rigorous monitoring process of 2020/21 once approved to ensure all savings were 
to be delivered as described

 Identification of savings proposals for 2021 – 2024 to ensure a programme of 
support could be established early on to ensure these proposals progressed with an 
escalation process for any issues that may arise

 A review of the process for agreeing capital projects and funding to ensure a return 
on investment and a better link with the revenue budget

Page 63



 The commencement of the Outcomes Based Budgeting programme that would see 
resources only aligned to evidence based beneficial outcomes. This programme 
linked to the new Target Operating Model which was also being designed at the 
time.

The programme was progressing well and supported the 2020/21 budget setting process.  
In March 2020 however, in response to the Covid-19 emergency, both the Programme 
Manager and Project Manager were seconded to manage the PPE hub and progress on 
the Financial Sustainability Programme halted. The staff, having returned from the PPE hub 
in August are now fully occupied supporting the Covid-19 recovery and remobilisation.

A new process to manage the 2021/22 budget has been put in place this year in response 
to tight timescales following the Covid-19 emergency and a transition year in establishing a 
new formal budget setting process following the establishment of the Committee system.  
This process is described in detail in a separate report on this agenda but in summary the 
following major programmes have been identified to support the 2021/22 – 2024/25 
medium term financial strategy:

 Review of effectiveness of specific back office services to ensure they are fit for 
purpose, adding value and taking full advantage of digitalisation

 A full Cost of Care exercise for Social Care commissioned services 
 A whole Council Prevention Strategy to reduce future demand and reduce costs
 A Zero/Outcomes Based Budgeting exercise to ensure resources are aligned to 

outcomes and only provided where beneficial outcomes aligned to the Council’s 
priorities can be evidenced

 A full establishment review to ensure staffing resources are aligned to the Council’s 
priorities, especially in light of additional capacity required following Covid-19

 A review of Adult Social Care pathways to ensure they are as efficient as they can 
be and are optimising and outcomes based care approach

 A strategy for reducing the cost of Looked After Children in the short to medium term 
while the Prevention Strategy can be implemented

 A review of the Council’s assets to ensure the Council is only holding assets that 
contribute to its priorities 

 Return on Investment modelling on the Council’s income generating activities to 
ensure investment is only provided where a future return can be demonstrated

 A review of all Council contracts and contract management functions to ensure 
services are only commissioned that contribute to the Council’s priorities and once 
commissioned are being managed effectively.

 The implementation of a new combined finance/HR/procurement critical business 
system 

The outcome of this process will result in a range of proposals being taken to individual 
Service Committees during October and November for discussion and debate. The 
feedback from this debate will be presented to Policy & Resources Committee in 
December, (or January, pending the date of the Government’s funding settlement) along 
with the suite of recommended budget proposals to consult the public on for the 2021/22 
budget.

In recognition of the changing landscape as a result of Covid, the Council is reviewing its 
2025 Wirral Plan and priorities to ensure it is fit for its purpose in light of the immediate and 

Page 64



longer term impact of Covid. This will drive the design and implementation of a new 
operating model for the Council and aligned to this, the programme of outcomes based 
budgeting will see resources only provided where beneficial outcomes can be 
demonstrated. This programme of work will take around 12-18 months to complete but 
should result in significant future savings being released, a proportion of which can 
contribute to any ongoing future budget gap and a proportion can be reinvested into long 
term prevention to avoid future increases in cost.

7.0 CONCLUSION

Much work is currently being undertaken to mitigate the minimum £67m two year gap for 
2020/21 and 2021/22. The outcome of this work will result in a suite of proposals for each 
Service Committee being presented during October and November with a recommendation 
to Policy and Resources Committee in December/January for a suite of proposals for public 
consultation. 

8.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 This is a financial report and therefore all the relevant financial information is 
contained within the main body of the report

9.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 The entire report concerns the duty of the Council to avoid a budget shortfall. The 
Chief Finance Officer has a personal duty under the Local Government Finance 
Act 1988 Section 114 to make a report to the executive if it appears to them that the 
expenditure of the authority incurred (including expenditure it proposes to incur) 
in a financial year is likely to exceed the resources available to it to meet that 
expenditure.  The current financial situation is at a point in time and further funding 
and flexibilities is awaited from Government to offset the budget gap.  If this is not 
sufficient to offset the forecast and no alternatives can be found, this position will be 
revisited.

10.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

10.1 There are no specific implications from this update report however all of the 
proposals being developed will have implications for staffing, ICT and assets and 
these will be covered individually in the budget proposals that are presented to the 
Policy and Service Committees

11.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

11.1 There is a risk that if the capitalisation directive is not approved by HM Treasury then 
an emergency budget will have to be set. However, this will be presented to Policy 
and Resources Committee in November or December 2020.

12.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

12.1 Informal consultation has been carried out with Members and MPs who have been 
kept appraised of the Council’s budget situation as a result of the impact of Covid-19

Page 65



13.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

13.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure 
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity.

13.2 Equality impact assessments where relevant will be provided for all of the individual 
budget proposals being presented to the Policy and Services Committees during 
October and November 2020.This report has no impact on equalities.

14.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

14.1 As a result of the budget proposals being submitted to the individual Policy and 
Services Committees during October and November, any environment and climate 
implications will be described in the individual proposals. This report has no impact 
on environment and climate

REPORT AUTHOR: Shaer Halewood
Shaer Halewood, Director of Resources (S151 Officer)
telephone:  Tel: 0151 691 8688
email:  shaerhalewood@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

None

BACKGROUND PAPERS

2020/21 Budget Report
2020/21 Quarter 1 Budget Monitoring Report
Covid-19 JESIP forms
Government Covid-19 funding papers

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Full Council 
Cabinet 

2 March 2020
27 July 2020

Page 66



POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 7 October 2020

REPORT TITLE: 2021/22 BUDGET TRANSITION PROCESS
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

REPORT SUMMARY

The report provides the process for budget setting as a transition year for 2021/22 in the 
Committee Process. The report describes the financial position for 2021/22 which as at 
Quarter 1 was deficit of £45m, and the actions being put in place to mitigate the gap.

These actions include a phased approach of 5 stages and includes the timeline for the 
2021/22 budget setting process of when individual budget proposals are presented to the 
Policy and Services Committees to the recommendation for approval by the Policy and 
Resources Committee in February, to Full Council to set the 2021/22 budget.

RECOMMENDATION/S

That the Policy and Resources Committee note the transition process for the 2021/22 
budget setting process.

Page 67

Agenda Item 10



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 The Policy and Resources Committee have responsibility for approving budget 
options that will be recommended to Full Council to set the annual budget. To enable 
the Committee to understand those processes in the new Committee System in 
order to make informed decisions, the process is described is this report. 

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 A report does not have to be provided to the Committee to describe the process for 
the transition year of 2021/22 in order to set the annual budget. However, there is a 
risk that if this process is not described, Members of the Committee will not have the 
relevant information to make an informed decision.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The Council must set a balanced budget by 10 March by law and the Local 
Government Finance Act, 1988 places certain responsibilities on the Chief Finance 
Officer, namely Section 114 (3): “The chief finance officer of a relevant authority shall 
make a report under this section if it appears to him that the expenditure of the 
authority incurred (including expenditure it proposes to incur) in a financial year is 
likely to exceed the resources (including sums borrowed) available to it to meet that 
expenditure.”

3.2 On 2 March 2020, Council approved a balanced budget for the 2020/21 financial 
year. At that time the Government had announced that austerity was over and in the 
preceding December, the Council received the best financial funding settlement for 
10 years. As a result, there were minimal significant pressures assumed for future 
years in the Medium Term Financial Strategy with the exception of demographic and 
inflationary growth. During the 2019/20 financial year, a Financial Sustainability 
Programme was established, endorsed by the LGA, to ensure a medium to long term 
plan was in place to mitigate any future growth or pressures during the 2020 – 2024 
timeframe. 

3.3 This programme was progressing well until March 2020 when the Covid-19 global 
pandemic struck and work was halted to enable key staff to be seconded to support 
the emergency response. As a result, a new process has been put in place for the 
2021/22 budget which will also be the first in the new Committee system. This will be 
a temporary process for one year to enable the transition through the Committee 
system.

4.0 CURRENT BUDGET POSITION

4.1 In resetting the Medium Term Financial Plan there is a forecast best case scenario 
budget gap in 2021/22 of £45m. This is made up of: (main items)

 £17m carried forward unachievable savings from 2020/21 
 £7m of existing pressures from contract, pay and levy increases  

Page 68



 £9m new pressures from Adult Social Care, Childrens Social Care and 
Homelessness

 £7m assumed reductions of funding from Public Health
 £5m assumed loss of income from Sales, Fees and Charges continuing as a 

result of Covid

4.2 The gap could increase to £67m if the 2020/21 budget gap cannot be mitigated in-
year. Following an increase of restrictions as a result of rising Covid-19 infection 
numbers, this gap is expected to further increase and is currently being quantified.  

4.3 To mitigate the gap, the Council has requested approval from the Committee for 
permission from MHCLG to apply to HM Treasury on the Council’s behalf for a 
capitalisation directive. This means that the Council can charge any unmet 2020/21 
and potentially 2021/22 deficits specifically incurred as a result of Covid to the capital 
programme. There would be a resulting revenue impact of this as the Council would 
need to borrow funds to pay for the capitalisation, which would need to eventually be 
repaid. As yet, however, it is not known how long the repayment would take place 
over so it is impossible to identify how much the cost of borrowing and the resulting 
revenue costs would be.

4.4 MHCLG have informed the Council that the process to agree a capitalisation 
directive will take some months from the date of application and there is no 
guarantee that HM Treasury will agree to the request. MHCLG have informed the 
Council that the process to agree a capitalisation directive will take some months 
from the date of application, and there is no guarantee that HM Treasury will agree 
to the request. The approval of a capitalisation directive from Government comes 
with certain conditions that the Council will be expected to fulfil first these are:

 A robust assessment of the current budget position and the direct and indirect 
financial impact of Covid-19

 A robust medium term financial recovery strategy to ensure the Council can 
secure a sound financial and sustainable footing

 Assurance that the Council has done everything it can in advance to mitigate the 
budget gap including:

o Drawing down all useable reserves
o Evidencing the requirement for all pressures and growth
o Actioning and accelerating all the plans for savings to be achieved
o Assessing all non-statutory services to determine why they are being 

provided and evidencing what beneficial outcomes they provide

4.5 MHCLG also require the Council to have these plans externally validated before the 
submission is provided and the Council has commissioned the Local Government 
Association (LGA) to carry out this work. Once completed, MHCLG will place 
reliance on the external validation from the LGA as to whether the submission for a 
capitalisation directive is robust.

4.6 The timing of government decisions will impact on the steps the Councils takes to set 
a balanced budget for 2021/22. The outcome of the capitalisation directive may not 
be known until November and the funding settlement from Government is not usually 
announced until the week before Christmas. Therefore, for prudence purposes, 

Page 69



options will be presented to Members on a worst case scenario basis until further 
information is known. 

5.0 WAYS TO SET A BALANCED BUDGET

5.1 There are generally two ways that a Council can set a balanced budget: Increase its 
funding or reduce its costs

5.2 How the Council can increase its funding

5.3 The Council is funded in several ways:

 Council Tax
 Business Rates
 Grants
 Income from Sales, Fees and Charges
 Income from Investments

(a) Council Tax

The total income expected from Council Tax in 2021/22 is £153.04m. A current Council Tax 
referendum cap imposed by Government is in place meaning that Council Tax can only be 
increased by 1.99% in any one year. Any proposals to increase Council Tax above that 
limit, unless temporarily relaxed by Government, will be subject to a referendum. The 
current trajectory for Council Tax for 2021/22 is that the number of homes will not increase 
significantly from the previous year and an assumption has already been built into the 
2021/21 budget for an increase in Council tax of £3m

An additional 1% increase in Council Tax generates approximately £1.5m per annum of 
additional income.  

(b) Business Rates

The total income expected from Business Rates in 2021/22 is £138.89m. The actual 
income collected from Business Rate payers is assumed to be £73.2m with top up and rate 
relief grants of £48m and an assumed continuation of the Better Care Fund (which is 
included within the business rates figures) of £18.7m

The value of business rates is set by the Valuation Office which the Council has no 
influence over. The only way to increase business rates is for new businesses to register to 
pay business rates.  For 2021/22 there is very little assumption for an increase in business 
rates (around £0.3m).

(c) Grants

The main grants the Council receives are the Dedicated Schools Grant £279.356m which is 
passported to individual schools with a small element retained and ringfenced for 
Education; the Social Care grant £11.26m which is ring-fenced to Adults’ and Children’s 
Social Care and the Public Health Grant £29.87 which is ring-fenced for Public Health 
activities. For 2021/22 it is assumed that these grants will continue and are not cut. The 

Page 70



Council also receives grants for capital which are ring-fenced for specific schemes. The 
Council still receives a grant from the Government which replaced the Revenue Support 
Grant. This is the Business Rates top up grant which is described above

(d) Sales, Fees & Charges

The Council generates income from sales, fees and charges at around £32m per annum.  
The main areas where this is generated is:

 Leisure and culture
 Car parking
 Green waste
 Environmental Health
 Statutory fees e.g. licencing, planning etc

Where possible the Council charges a market fee for sales and admissions for its services 
with concessions available where relevant. During the Covid-19 Pandemic in 2020/21 the 
income forecast was reduced by over 50% as a result of facilities being temporarily closed 
and public anxiety to return once re-opened. 

The 2020/21 forecast reduction in income is £16m, however, the Government introduced a 
compensation scheme for Local Authorities to claim back a proportion of their lost income 
from sales, fees and charges. The estimate of this that could be claimed back for 2020/21 is 
around £9m.

As lockdown relaxes further and public confidence grows, the take up of council services 
will increase but it is assumed that this will not be at the pre-Covid levels in 2021/22. As a 
result, a forecast 30% drop in income is assumed throughout 2021/22. This is creating a 
new pressure on the 2021/22 budget and the Government have been clear that the 
compensation scheme will not continue past 2020/21.

No inflationary increases for income have been assumed in 2021/22 as this may have a 
detrimental impact on the level of income collected, especially as the public may still be 
financially impacted as a result of Covid-19

(e) Commercial and Investment Income

Commercial income is generated from assets the Council has purchased purely to collect 
rental income. The Council only has one asset in this category, the Vue Cinema which it 
purchased for regeneration purposes but is currently generating commercial income from 
rental. Investment Income is generated from investing surplus cash flow to generate 
interest. Interest rates are calculated by the market and the Council doesn’t have any 
influence over this.  Each time the Council choses to invest in a new area, due diligence 
must be carried out to minimise any risk. This can be a lengthy process

5.4 How the Council can reduce its expenditure

5.5 The Council should only be spending on areas that align with its strategic priorities of 
the 2025 Wirral Plan. The plan identifies the ambition for the Council in supporting 
the community by enabling:

Page 71



 Safe and pleasant communities
 A sustainable environment
 An inclusive economy
 Brighter futures
 Active and healthy lives

5.6 In reducing its expenditure, Members must make decisions based on whether the 
Council’s financial resources contribute to the five priorities of the Wirral Plan, and 
where there is not enough funding to provide all services, resources will be aligned 
to where the highest priority areas are. This may mean that not all the functions the 
Council currently provides will continue to be provided.

5.7 As part of the budget process for 2021/22, Officers are currently developing 
proposals to reduce expenditure in all areas across the Council for Members to 
debate in Service Committees.

Comprehensive Spending Review

5.8 The Government’s Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) is where the 
Government decide where to spend its resources in the following year. The outcome 
of this for Local Government is the funding settlement where Councils get to hear 
whether their funding has been increased, stays the same or is being reduced for the 
following year. The CSR was due to be take place ready for the 2020/21 budget 
planning process. As a result of Brexit this was postponed and a one year settlement 
was provided. This makes financial planning extremely difficult as temporary funding 
streams are uncertain and it is not known whether they will continue.  

5.9 As a result of Covid-19, the Government have stated that they will ‘do whatever it 
takes’ to ensure Local Authorities are funded adequately to support the response, 
however no information or announcement has yet been provided about the indirect 
impact of Covid-19 e.g. an assumed ongoing reduction in sales, fees and charges 
and additional expenditure which are contributing to new pressures in 2021/22.

5.10 As the Local Authority funding settlement is not due to be announced until December 
2020 it is very difficult to set the budget in advance. As a result, there is little choice 
at this stage to plan for a worst case scenario as statutory consultation needs to be 
considered within the budget setting timescale.

5.11 In the event of the award of a capitalisation directive and a more favourable 
settlement than planned for in the 2021/22 budget and beyond, the proposals put 
forward as part of the 2021/22 budget report can be adjusted after the settlement 
has been announced.

6.0 CONSULTATION

6.1 The Council is under a duty to consult non-domestic ratepayers about the authority's 
proposals for expenditure (including capital expenditure). It is normal, indeed 
expected under the Council’s current and draft revised Constitution, that 

Page 72



engagement with the public over the development of the budget will go further than 
this and meet the standard of the Government Consultation Principles.

6.2 The consultation process, including the Council’s consideration of the responses, is 
required to comply with the following overarching obligations (unless detailed 
statutory rules supplant these): 

 
1. Consultation must be at a time when proposals are at a formative stage. 
 
2. The proposer must give sufficient reasons for its proposals to allow consultees to 

understand them and respond to them properly. 
 
3. Consulters must give sufficient time for responses to be made and considered. 
 
4. Responses must be conscientiously taken into account in finalising the decision. 

6.3 There is a particular requirement to take into consideration the Council’s fiduciary 
duty and the public sector equality duty in coming to its decision. 

 
6.4 The public sector equality duty is that a public authority must, in the exercise of its 

functions, have due regard to the need to:

(1) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation, and any other conduct that is 
prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010
(2) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it and 
(3) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

6.5 Any decision made in the exercise of any function is potentially open to challenge if 
this duty has been disregarded. The duty applies both to full Council when setting the 
budget and to Committee when considering decisions. 

7.0 PLANNING FOR THE 2021/22 BUDGET

7.1 During October to December, reports will be presented to the Policy & Resources 
Committee that update Members on changes to the budget gap. The reports being 
presented to the Policy and Resources Committee up to the time the budget is set 
are:

 October: Covid-19 position statement
2021/22 Transitional budget process

 November: Budget update report

 December/January: Budget proposals to go out for public consultation

 January: Budget update report including the Government funding 
settlement

Page 73



 February: 2021/22 Budget to be recommended to Full Council

7.2 Due to time constraints a new transitional process is being applied for the 2021/22 
budget. This is described as follows:

Phase 1 – Immediate Actions.  Status: Green - complete
(a) Review of all 2020/21 unachievable savings to determine whether a 

proportion of these can be achieved
(b) Review of 2020/21 growth/pressures to determine as a result of Covid, 

whether any assumptions have changed and if all the growth/pressures are 
required

(c) Review of 2021/22 pressures to determine whether they are all still required 
and if so, at the same value

(d) Review of earmarked reserves to determine whether any can be clawed back 
to be used to support the 2021/22 budget

(e) Review of the 2020/21 budget forecasts to determine whether any savings as 
a result of Covid can be carried forward and used to contribute to the 2021/22 
budget

Phase 2 – Directorate Proposals. Status: Amber – being finalised
(a) The identification of short term options proposals for Members to balance the 
2021/22 budget from Officers. This is a continuous process and Officers will continue 
to submit proposals up to and beyond December 2020

(b) The identification of medium to long term proposals to ensure the Council can 
be financially sustainable for the future.  This process is being twin tracked with (a) to 
ensure no duplication or contradiction. This is a continuous process and will carry on 
into the Financial Sustainability Programme once this is re-established

Phase 3 – Categorisation of Proposals. Status: Green - complete
An initial grouping of proposals into four themes to support evidence based decision 
making for Members:

1) An assessment of whether statutory services provided are efficient, and where 
they are not to submit efficiency proposals

2) An assessment of non-statutory services of whether they are providing beneficial 
outcomes that support cost avoidance and demand reduction in statutory 
services, and where they are not to submit proposals as to whether to continue 
with those services

3) An assessment of income generating services as to whether they can 
demonstrate a future return on investment, and where they cannot, to submit 
proposals as to whether to continue with those services

4) An assessment of all back office functions to identify whether they are providing a 
value added service to support statutory and beneficial non-statutory services, 
and where they do not to submit proposals as to whether to continue with those 
services

Page 74



Phase 4 – Corporate Challenge.  Status: Green - complete
A further breakdown of the four themes into 7 individual workstreams supported by a 
lead Officer to be accountable for ensuring progress against the workstreams.  The 
themes are being led by a corporate challenge process to ensure all areas of the 
Council have been considered:

1) Service savings
2) Service effectiveness
3) Income & Traded Services
4) Contracts
5) Assets
6) Workforce
7) Prevention Strategy

As a result of this challenge a series of programmes have been identified to 
commence/have commenced with the aim of reducing costs across the Council in 
the immediate, medium and long term. These are:

 Review of effectiveness of specific back office services to ensure they are fit for 
purpose, adding value and taking full advantage of digitalisation

 A full Cost of Care exercise for Social Care commissioned services 
 A whole Council Prevention Strategy to reduce future demand and reduce costs
 A Zero/Outcomes Based Budgeting exercise to ensure resources are aligned to 

outcomes and only provided where beneficial outcomes aligned to the Council’s 
priorities can be evidenced

 A full establishment review to ensure staffing resources are aligned to the 
Council’s priorities, especially in light of additional capacity required following 
Covid-19

 A review of Adult Social Care pathways to ensure they are as efficient as they 
can be and are optimising and outcomes based care approach

 A strategy for reducing the cost of Looked After Children in the short to medium 
term while the Prevention Strategy can be implemented

 A review of the Council’s assets to ensure the Council is only holding assets that 
contribute to its priorities 

 Return on Investment modelling on the Council’s income generating activities to 
ensure investment is only provided where a future return can be demonstrated

 A review of all Council contracts and contract management functions to ensure 
services are only commissioned that contribute to the Council’s priorities and 
once commissioned are being managed effectively.

 The implementation of a new combined finance/HR/procurement critical business 
system 

Phase 5 – Contingency Plan.  Status: Amber – being considered
In the event of proposals generated by the first 4 themes do not equal the value of 
the budget gap, a contingency process is being developed. Once all the proposals 
from the first four themes have been received and evaluated and the gap has not 
been met, other proposals need to be considered. The Council is not able to not set 
a balanced budget by law and where Members are not able to identify proposals to 
meet the gap, this would mean that the expenditure of the Council outweighs its 

Page 75



funding and the Section 151 Officer would be required to issue a Section 114 
statement.

The contingency plan is to identify for all services, how each service could continue 
with a 5%, 10% or 15% reduction in those budgets. These proposals would indicate 
to Members what the reduced service would look like, what the implications would be 
and what the risks are likely to be. In the event of not being able to bridge the budget 
gap with proposals from the first 4 phases of the process, Members would need to 
choose what level of risk they would be comfortable to accept in deciding on these 
phase 5 proposals. This is a very high risk option and would require some further 
discussion.

This effective cut to services is high risk to the achievement of the Councils priorities 
and the Wirral 2025 plan as it will inevitably result in cuts in preventative services 
and in services and functions that will generate future savings and cost avoidance for 
the Council from additional income or reduced demand.

Longer term planning

7.3 In recognition of the changing landscape as a result of Covid, the Council is 
reviewing its 2025 Wirral Plan and priorities to ensure it is fit for its purpose in light of 
the immediate and longer term impact of Covid. This will drive the design and 
implementation of a new operating model for the Council and aligned to this, a 
programme of zero and outcomes based budgeting will see resources only provided 
where beneficial outcome can be demonstrated.  

7.4 This programme of work will take around 12-18 months to complete and will result in 
significant future savings being released, a proportion of which can contribute to any 
ongoing future budget gap and a proportion can be reinvested into long term 
prevention to avoid future increases in cost.  The programmes described in Phase 4 
will form part of this longer term plan.

8.0 WHAT HAPPENS NEXT

8.1 Following the Policy and Resources Committee, Officers will present reports to the 
individual Service Committees during October and November with the budget 
proposals for 2021/22 for debate and discussion. These reports will include the 
Directorate proposals put forward to increase income or reduce expenditure to 
mitigate the budget gap and will include the proposals for what a 5%, 10% and 15% 
reduction in budgets would present for the service areas in 2021/22.

8.2 Committees will debate and discuss these proposals considering the factors that will 
be included within the reports:

 Impact on residents
 Impact on the workforce
 Impact on Wirral as a place
 Level of risk
 Impact on the future ability of the area to generate income or avoid future 

costs

Page 76



 Whether the service is Statutory
 Where the service is non-statutory, what beneficial outcomes it generates

8.3 Committees are welcome and encouraged to identify and submit their own ideas for 
proposals for Officers to work up. The usual process for Committees would be to 
identify and submit their own ideas for budget savings during the year, however for 
this transition year, Officers will submit savings to Committees initially and 
Committee’s will be asked for any proposals they also wish to consider.

8.4 The feedback from the individual committees will be provided to the Policy and 
Resources Committee at the December or January meeting, (depending on the date 
of the government funding announcement) where the Committee will be presented 
with a suite of proposals to go out for public consultation.

8.5 Where proposals are still being developed, they can be fed into the process at any 
time, through individual committees to Policy and Resources. Members must be 
mindful however, of the Council’s obligation for public consultation where late 
proposals miss the December/January Policy and Resources deadline.

8.6 The consultation process will take around 4 weeks and the outcome will be 
presented to the Policy & Resources Committee in February 2021 with a full budget 
package to be recommended to Full Council to set the 2021/22 budget in March 
2021.

8.7 Where the Policy and Resources Committee fails to identify sufficient proposals from 
the 5 phases described in section 7 that have been submitted by Officers, rejects 
any proposals for implementation, and fails to identify any alternative proposals to 
recommend a balanced budget to Full Council in March, this would result in the 
Section 151 Officer issuing a Section 114 notice. The implications of which would 
mean intervention by the Government and the appointment of external 
Commissioners to manage the Council’s finances.  As the proposals submitted to the 
Committees by the Officers as part of the 5 phases will be robust and achievable, it 
is likely that the external Commissioners would action the implementation of these.

9.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1 This is a financial report and therefore all the relevant financial information is 
contained within the main body of the report

10.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 The entire report concerns the duty of the Council to avoid a budget shortfall. The 
Chief Finance Officer has a personal duty under the Local Government Finance 
Act 1988 Section 114 to make a report to the executive if it appears to them that 
the expenditure of the authority incurred (including expenditure it proposes to 
incur) in a financial year is likely to exceed the resources available to it to meet 
that expenditure. The current financial situation is at a point in time and further 
funding and flexibilities is awaited from Government to offset the budget gap.  If this 
is not sufficient to offset the forecast and no alternatives can be sound, this position 
will be revisited.

Page 77



11.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

11.1 There are no specific implications from this update report however all of the 
proposals being developed will have implications for staffing, ICT and assets and 
these will be covered individually in the budget proposals that are presented to the 
Policy and Service Committees

12.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

12. There is a risk that if the capitalisation directive is not approved by HM Treasury then 
an emergency budget will have to be set.  However this will be presented to Policy 
and Resources Committee in November 2020.

13.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

13.1 Informal consultation has been carried out with Members who have been kept 
appraised of the Council’s budget situation. 

14.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

14.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure 
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity.

14.2 Equality impact assessments where relevant will be provided for all of the individual 
budget proposals being presented to the Policy and Services Committees during 
October and November 2020.  This report has no impact on equalities.

15.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

15.1 The content and/or recommendations contained within this report are not expected 
to have any impact on emissions of Greenhouse Gases                   

REPORT AUTHOR: Shaer Halewood
Shaer Halewood, Director of Resources (S151 Officer)
telephone:  Tel: 0151 691 8688
email:  shaerhalewood@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

None

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Council’s Constitution
Policy & Resources Committee Terms of Reference
Local Government Finance Act 1988
Quarter 1 Budget Monitoring Report
2020/21 Budget Report and Medium Term Financial Plan

Page 78



SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Full Council 
Cabinet

2 March 2020
27 July 2020

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
7 OCTOBER 2020

REPORT TITLE: BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE MONITORING
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

REPORT SUMMARY

Through the development of Wirral Council’s new Governance arrangements and the 
approval of the Wirral Plan 2025 (currently being refreshed to reflect strategic priorities, as a 
result of Covid-19) the Authority has committed to developing a budget and performance 
monitoring framework, which honours the Council’s dedication to a more accountable, 
transparent way of conducting business, policy formation and decision making. 

It is proposed that the Performance Framework is modelled on the Covid Dashboard set up 
at the start of the Coronavirus pandemic. This will enable clear and accessible data to be 
presented in a timely and meaningful way.

There are a very wide range of data sets that could be included in the Dashboard, and 
it is proposed that the specific selection will be co-created with members to ensure it 
is of most relevance and benefit to members.

Aligned with this is the Wirral Plan 2025. The Plan is currently being refreshed to reflect the 
Covid-19 situation and emerging Recovery Plans. This Plan will set out what the Council will 
commit to delivering over the next 5 years. Wirral’s public services: the Wirral Partnership 
have a shared duty to improve the quality of life for residents. 

Our ambition is for:
 A prosperous, inclusive economy where local people can get good jobs and achieve 

their aspirations.
 A sustainable borough that is not only environmentally friendly but one which plays 

its part in urgently responding to the environment and climate crisis 
 Brighter futures for our young people and families – regardless of their background or 

where they live
 Safe, vibrant communities where people want to live and raise their families
 Services which help people live happy, healthy, independent, and active lives, with 

public services there to support them when they need it

RECOMMENDATION/S

To ensure that Governance in Wirral allows for open, transparent, and responsive decision 
making, robust performance and budget monitoring will be incorporated to ensure that the 
individual policy and service committees will have sufficient oversight of these areas. 

Page 81

Agenda Item 11



It is therefore recommended that the Policy and Resources Committee requests the Director 
of Resources to schedule a Members Workshop to enable members to identify, shape and 
own the performance data and information presented in future reports.

Page 82



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1   To ensure that governance arrangements in Wirral enable open, transparent, and 
responsive decision making, robust performance and budget monitoring will be 
incorporated to ensure that the Policy and Resources Committee and the individual 
policy and service committees will have sufficient oversight of these areas.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 There are a number of options for capturing performance and budget information, and 
these will be presented to members at the workshop  

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1    Regular monitoring of performance and the Council’s performance and budgets will 
ensure the Public have oversight and to enable Elected Members to make informed 
decisions in a timely manner. 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1      There are no financial implications arising from this report 

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1      There are no legal implications arising from this report.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

6.1       There are none arising from this report.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 The Council’s Corporate Risk Register was presented to Audit & Risk Management 
Committee in March 2020. This is currently being reviewed and aligned to the new 
committees’ priorities and objectives within this process, and to reflect the updated 
Wirral Plan and the impact of COVID-19. 

7.2 As the plan is currently being refreshed to reflect changes due to COVID-19, a new 
Performance Management Framework (PMF) is currently being developed to align 
with the refreshed plan. The PMF will be aligned to the Council’s risk management 
strategy and both will be regularly reviewed as part of corporate management 
processes.

7.3 There are significant implications for the Council in changing its decision-making 
structure to a new form of governance, which is being launched alongside 
unprecedented financial and service pressures resulting from both the COVID-19 
pandemic and subsequent demand on services. As such, Wirral Council have had to 
re-prioritise and re-design how our services are delivered and operated. 

Page 83



8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 The priorities in the Council Plan 2025 were informed by stakeholder engagement 
carried out in 2019. 

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it carries 
out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact Assessment is a 
tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure equality for anyone 
who might be affected by a policy, decision, or activity.

(a) Yes, and impact review can be found at https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-
and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments
Navigate to Equality Impact Assessments since 2017.
Navigate to service area.

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 The Wirral Plan 2025 includes a set of goals and objectives to create a sustainable 
environment which urgently tackles the environment emergency. These are based on 
developing and delivering plans that improve the environment for Wirral residents. The 
performance report will include information on key areas where environment and 
climate related outcomes are delivered. 

The content and/or recommendations contained within this report are expected to: - 
Reduce emissions of greenhouse gasses 

REPORT AUTHOR: Carly Brown
Assistant Director Chief Executive’s Office
email:  carlybrown@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Example of Covid Dashboard

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

Page 84

https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments
mailto:carlybrown@wirral.gov.uk


Page 85



Headlines

0

0

Emails received to date

Top 3

0

226

1,077,021

132,251

30,116

7,241

5642

Social Media Impressions

Video Views

Engagements

Data Period upto: 06/09/20

50 TOP 3

21.47%

No update this week

TOP 3

Homepage, Bin collections, Testing

Posts Published

Clicks

TOP 3

Homepage
Local Lockdown

Testing

Cell:  Communications

0
50

100
150
200
250

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

wirral.gov.uk

0
1
2
3
4

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

wirralinfobank.co.uk

Web TrafficSocial Media

0 500000 1000000 1500000 2000000

03/05
10/05
17/05
24/05
31/05
07/06
14/06
21/06
28/06
05/07
12/07
19/07
26/07
02/08
09/08
16/08
23/08
30/08
06/09

Impressions

73.70%
58.50%

66.20%
69.60%

49.60%
49.00%

55.20%
53.10%

51.80%
46.40%

50.20%
42.80%

56.30%
48.90%

52.80%
57.30%

52.60%
60.30%

61.80%

31.30%
15.30%

30.30%
29.00%

18.00%
16.20%

21.80%
14.10%

28.10%
18.20%

22.70%
20.80%

19.00%
20.30%

21.00%
20.10%

21.20%
17.90%

14.50%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%
03/05
17/05
31/05
14/06
28/06
12/07
26/07
09/08
23/08
06/09

Resident Emails

Resident Email % Click Through Rate
Resident Email % Open Rate

- Prevent a local lockdown, Council Leader urges
- Residents full of praise for Wirral businesses
- Birkenhead Gets First Covid-19 Local Testing Site in Wirral

0

2

4

6

8

10

Decisions made to date

0

200

400

600

Covid19@wirral.gov.uk

0

20

40

60

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

wirralview.co.uk

Page 86



8 Call Handlers Available

08/09/20
46

08/09/20
24
0

To Date
10155
3549

0 0

766 53

To Date
2535

08/09/20

To Date

08/09/20
20

412To Date 32To Date

Data Period upto: 08/09/20

14119

Helpline

Helpline: 0151 666 5050

0

100

200

300

400

Food Related Calls

Calls Answered To Date

0

100

200

300

Emergency Food Food

0

10

20

30

40

50
Vulnerable Residents

Vulnerable Adults Vulnerable Children

ChildrenAdults

Adults Children

0

10

20

30 Business Enquiries

0

1

2

3

4
Emergency Accommodation

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140

Others

Page 87



Week Ending 09/09/20

Working % 89.82%

Not Working % 10.18%

55% Not able to work 6%

35%  Sick / Other 4%

Covid-19 
(Symptomatic)

4

Covid-19
(Tested )

0

Covid-19 
(Confirmed )

0

Since 22nd March 2020

Non-Critical 
Roles

Up 400%

45 Council Buildings Closed

09/09/2009/09/20

Critical Roles

Workforce %
(week ending)

Data Period upto: 09/09/20

Workforce %
(week ending)

Total Employees 3359

Cell:  Workforce

1856

1161

Employees Working
(Critical & Non-Critical Roles)

203

139

Employees not Working
(Service Closure, Sick & Other)

27
68

27
84

27
80

27
80

29
49

29
43

30
17

56
6

55
5

56
5

56
9

40
0

40
0

34
2

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

Total Employees & Working Status

Working Not working

265 266 266 265 265 265 265

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

26/07 02/08 11/08 17/08 24/08 31/08 09/09

Redeployed (supporting covid)

1955 1951 1951 1953 1938 1931 1933

0

1000

2000

3000

26/07 02/08 11/08 17/08 24/08 31/08 09/09

Working from Home

9
0

14

217

28

3

71

Breakdown of 342 Not Working Adult Care and Health

Corporate Office

Regeneration and
Place

Resources

Neighbourhoods

Law and Governance

Children, Family and
Education

Page 88



2619 14%

125 10%

20 30%

157

30/08/20 06/09/20
£8,296 £7,606
£9,108 £7,324

n/a n/a

April
May
June

1000 new registered users for Golf since 01/06/20 

10,000 rounds of golf been played since opening on 01/06/20

Number Of Service Requests

Proactive COVID Advice (COVF) removed from the dashboard as the 
Food Standards Agency (FSA) advice is now to carry out remote 
A new code COVT will be reported on from next week as COVID +ve 
cases and outbreaks are passed to Env Health for 

Value Of 
Transactions

Week Ending
Ticket Sales
Café/Takeaway Sales
Public Toilet Useage 2297

324
746

2252

30/08/20 06/09/20
340
974

Week ending 30/08/20

6
Requests for Advice (COVA) 6

COVID Related Complaints (COVC) 6

Website Visitors

Hours Watched 427 401

Followers 3380 3470

Last 7 days (3 day 
working week)

132

Upto July 2020

10,194            

Week Ending:

During week 
ending

06/09/20

06/09/20

Since 05/04/20 383

8

364

8

eBook Loans

06/09/20

Virtual Classes Streamed 30 128

06/09/20Week ending 30/08/20

From the 
same period 

in 2019

Page Views 652

Refuse, Dry & Garden Tonnage Collected

Street Cleansing (Veolia Tip Tickets)

Fly Tip Removals (Biffa)

Week ending:

506

17

* Figures compared to same period in 2019
   Green = % increase,    Red = % decrease

72.25%

5623July

2421
4485
5335

450

Energy Saving Against Old Lanterns C02 Reduction Per Annum

60.49% 396.22 tonnes

132%
From April - 
July 2020

Graph Data (23/3 –08/09) 2019 vs (23/3 –08/09) 2020

31.47%

1595

Members

9370

06/09/20
30

Cell: Neighbourhood Services

Comparison Tonnage 2019 v 2020 

26/07
02/08
09/08
16/08
23/08
30/08
06/09

0 10 20 30 40

Incidents 2019 Incidents 2020

Fly Tipping 2019 v 2020

26/07
02/08
09/08
16/08
23/08
30/08
06/09

0 10 20 30 40

Investigations 2019 Investigations 2020

26/07
02/08
09/08
16/08
23/08
30/08
06/09

0 20 40 60

Tonnage 2019 Tonnage 2020

Incidents Investigations Tonnage

Leisure Libraries

LED Replacement Programme

Williamson Art Gallery 
Website

Environmental Bonfires
(Domestic)
Complaint

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 200 220 240 260 280 300

2020
2019

Refuse On
Properties
Complaint

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 200 220 240 260 280 300

2019
2020

Noise
Complaint

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400 450 500 550 600 650 700 750 800

2019
2020

30
34

22 20 20
12

25

40 37

21
26 29

21
17

0

60

26/07 02/08 09/08 16/08 23/08 30/08 06/09
Tonnage 2019 Tonnage 2020

Enquiries For 
Neighbourhood Services 

Golf Courses Use & Social 
Media

The Floral Pavillion

Page 89



Last 
Week

To Date
This 

Week
To 

Date

0.18£     49.8£   0 £2.6m

41 4976 0 341

6.80% Residents in Wirral between 16-64 are claiming unemployment benefit

3,940

585

Cancellations since Apr 20

Business Paid

Applications 
Rec'd

Council Tax

Data Period upto:

Applications 
Rec'd

Business Rates

Paid Out £m

07/09/20
Cell:  Economic

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

Received Approved

395

258
232

152 163 170 179

91

190 181

106
161 138

69

147
107

134
164

215
157 175

120

236

492

0
30 6 20 4 5 5 7 2 2 0 2 3 0 0 0 2 1 3 0 0 1

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Council Tax DD Cancellations Business Rates DD Cancellations

Notes
Figures cover Tuesday to Monday each 
week.  New DD's last week - 417 CTAX 
and 5 Bus Rates.

Business Grant RHL/SBRR (scheme 1)

Direct Debit Cancellations

Local Welfare Assistance Applications

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

2019
2020

Discretionary Fund Grant (scheme 2)

0

100

200

300

400

Received Eligible Paid

146% average increase since March 20 

Claimant Count (Source ONS July 2020)

Wirral now has 12,900 claimants a decrease of 275 this month, the claimant rate is now 6.7% of the working-age population

Nearly all wards have seen a decrease or no change this month, but our largest concentrations remain in our most deprived areas with rates reaching nearly 15% in 
some wards;

The 18-24 age group is the only age group to see an increase this month; highlighting that they are being disproportionately affected by the impact of covid;

-9000

1000

11000

21000

31000

41000

51000

61000

Furloughed

0

10000

20000

30000

40000

Unemployment Benefit

Knowsley

Liverpool

Sefton

St. Helens

Wirral
0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

Self Employment Income Support 
Scheme (SEISS) Takeup

Eligible
Population
No of Claims

Page 90



Total PPE items forwarded on to LCR

8,835,560

Cleaning Products 0 42

Total PPE items delivered in Wirral

2,952,841

Thermometers 0 132

Gloves 28,200 129,900

Eye Protection 30 15,225

Hand Sanitiser (ml packs) 28 15,963

Hand Sanitiser (ltr packs) 0 0

Aprons 10,200

Gowns (long sleeved) 0

Data Period upto:

FFP2 0

20

0

5,350

FFP3

11R Fluid Resistant

II Surgical

07/09/2020

614,900

14,910

Closing Stock as at
Delivered in Wirral 

last 7 days

0

17,520

0

322,620

07/09/2020

6,898

17,817

168

88

Delivered in 
Wirral
since

2nd April

970,060

690,486

1,267,140

PPE
DI

SP
O

SA
BL

E 
FA

CE
M

AS
KS

DI
SP

O
SA

BL
E 

PP
E 

CL
O

TH
IN

G
HA

N
D

HY
GI

EN
E

EY
E

PR
O

TE
CT

IO
N

S
DI

SP
O

SA
BL

E
GL

O
VE

S
TH

ER
M

O
M

ET
ER

S
CL

EA
N

IN
G

PR
O

DU
CT

S

Page 91



Page 92



Climate Change
Monthly (Last Update 05 August 2020) 

41.16%

80%

35% 
Reduction in 

fuel 
consumption 

(litres) 

224.91 
tonnes CO2

In reduced emissions from 
reduced gas and electric 
usage in full billing data for 
June 2020 compared to 
June 2019 data

Reduced electricity 
consumption in full 
billing data for June

2020 compared to 
June 2019 data

Reduction in pages printed in June 
2020 compared to June 2019 data 

50% Reduction in mileage from March 
to June 2020

289% Increase in Microsoft Teams
Meetings Since March 2020

Reduced gas 
consumption in full 
billing data for June
2020 compared to 
June 2019 data

-324,655 kWh

49.57%
-776,993 kWh

8.89%
+ 1,166 Cubic Metres

Increased water 
consumption in full 
billing data for June

2020 compared to 
June 2019 data

19,650.40

23,194.20

16,962.80

23,733.50

10,845.70 9,979.00

13,949.70
15,399.30

5,000.00

10,000.00

15,000.00

20,000.00

25,000.00

April May June July

Page 93



Children & Young People
Data Period: 07/09/2020

Referrals CPP CLA
2,452 293 832

2250

2300

2350

2400

2450

2500

2550

06
-A

pr

13
-A

pr

20
-A

pr

27
-A

pr

04
-M

ay

11
-M

ay

18
-M

ay

25
-M

ay

01
-Ju

n

08
-Ju

n

15
-Ju

n

22
-Ju

n

29
-Ju

n

06
-Ju

l

13
-Ju

l

20
-Ju

l

27
-Ju

l

03
-A

ug

10
-A

ug

17
-A

ug

24
-A

ug

31
-A

ug

07
-S

ep

Referrals to social care

200

220

240

260

280

300

06
-A

pr

13
-A

pr

20
-A

pr

27
-A

pr

04
-M

ay

11
-M

ay

18
-M

ay

25
-M

ay

01
-Ju

n

08
-Ju

n

15
-Ju

n

22
-Ju

n

29
-Ju

n

06
-Ju

l

13
-Ju

l

20
-Ju

l

27
-Ju

l

03
-A

ug

10
-A

ug

17
-A

ug

24
-A

ug

31
-A

ug

07
-S

ep

Children on Child Protection Plans

805
810
815
820
825
830
835

06
-A

pr

13
-A

pr

20
-A

pr

27
-A

pr

04
-M

ay

11
-M

ay

18
-M

ay

25
-M

ay

01
-Ju

n

08
-Ju

n

15
-Ju

n

22
-Ju

n

29
-Ju

n

06
-Ju

l

13
-Ju

l

20
-Ju

l

27
-Ju

l

03
-A

ug

10
-A

ug

17
-A

ug

24
-A

ug

31
-A

ug

07
-S

ep

Children Looked After

Page 94



Children & Young People
Data Period: 07/09/2020

Source: Daily school attendance registers.  Children of statutory school age

Source: DfE return. Data is representative of those schools who submitted a return to the DfE. (94 
submitted a return on 8th Sept).  Data includes all children and young people from all settings

Early Years

PVI’s and 
maintained 
pre-schools 

Open
Partially 

open
Closed

% Register 
response 

rate

Children 
attending 
w/c 31/8

309 23 33 19 1.564

PVI = Private, Voluntary & Independent 

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Attendance - children with 
social worker  77.5%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Attendance - children with 
EHCP 75.6%

30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

07-Sep 08-Sep 09-Sep 10-Sep 11-Sep
07-Sep 08-Sep 09-Sep 10-Sep 11-Sep

Overall 88.9% 83.3%
Primary 84.9% 79.8%
Secondary 95.5% 88.9%
Special 55.5% 49.1%

School attendance

Page 95



Children & Young People
Data Period: 07/09/2020

Average social worker 
caseload 13.54

31st Aug 13.78
24th Aug 13.96
17th Aug 13.86

1 child missing 
from home

0 31st Aug
24th Aug 3
17th Aug 2

Outcome 
of DA 
contacts

Total DV 
contacts

Progress to 
Referral

Progress to 
Early Help

Advice 
given

Additional 
Contact 

Received
Draft/TBC

21-27 Jul 146 27 18 87 14 0

28-3 Aug 87 20 3 52 4 8

4-10 Aug 118 11 7 87 8 5

11-17 Aug 101 6 7 73 13 2

18-24 Aug 81 21 6 40 14

25-31 Aug 81 14 8 50 9

1-7 Sept 125 12 2 58 5 48

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

14
-2

0 
Ap

r

21
-2

7 
Ap

r

28
-4

 M
ay

5-
11

 M
ay

12
-1

8 
M

ay

19
-2

5 
M

ay

26
-1

 Ju
n

2-
8 

Ju
n

9-
15

 Ju
n

16
-2

2 
Ju

n

23
-2

9 
Ju

n

30
-6

 Ju
l

7-
13

 Ju
l

14
-2

0 
Ju

l

21
-2

7 
Ju

l

28
-3

 A
ug

4-
10

 A
ug

11
-1

7 
Au

g

28
-2

4 
Au

g

25
-3

1 
Au

g

1-
7 

Se
pt

125 Domestic Abuse contacts

Page 96



Children & Young People
DfE Vulnerable Children’s Survey

Wave 9 (submitted  9th September)

26th Aug 9th Sept 26th Aug 9th Sept 26th Aug 9th Sept
How many children do you have in the following 
groups?

826 830 275 295 1,409 1,335

How many of the children in each group have 
had their cases reviewed in light of the Covid-19 
outbreak? 

825 829 265 279 1,188 1,122

How many of the children in each group have 
been seen or contacted by their social worker in 
the last 2 weeks? 

595 562 232 241 832 697

How many of the children in each group have 
been seen or contacted by their social worker in 
the last 4 weeks?

784 780 265 283 1,175 1,092

26th Aug 9th Sept 26th Aug 9th Sept
Social workers - permanent or agency 213 216 0-10% 0-10%
Residential care staff 31.12 34.62 0-10% 0-10% 7.7%

26th Aug 9th Sept
Foster care placements 10% or less 10% or less
Residential care placements 10% or less 10% of less

System pressures

26th Aug 9th Sept

Please tell us how many referrals to childrens 
social care services you received in the last week? 

44 39

26th Aug 9th Sept
Please tell us how many children started to be 
looked after in the last week? 

1 4

Referral Source Number Number

Housing 1 1
Individual 2 5
Schools 0 0
Health services 10 4
Police 16
Other 10

EHCP question has been removed from this survey.  Instead there will be a spearate SEND monthly data collection exercise by the DfE.  

Referral Source 'Other' 
breakdown
LA Services
Other Legal Agency
Anonymous
Other

In the last week, what do you estimate has been the increase, if any, in your 
Cost pressures

Contact with children supported by the LA's children's social care
Children looked after Children on a 

child protection plan
All other children in need
*now includes care leavers

What steps are you taking to safeguard those children that you are not in contact with?
Recent work has been done to RAG rate each case within social care and visiting and contact timescales have been changed to reflect their RAG 
rating.  Children who are rated red are contacted/visited on a weekly basis.  Children rated amber are visited within every 4 weeks and contacted 
within every two weeks.  Green rated are visited within 6 weeks and contacted within every 3 weeks.  

Children who have not been contacted will be those children who are very stable, for example, we have children with disabilities who are receiving 
ongoing support and do not require regular contact.  We also have some children who are not able to be contacted, for example children in a youth 
justice setting.

Workforce
Total FTE staff Proportion of staff 

4.9%

Page 97



Children & Young People
DfE Survey 

DfE Survey - How does Wirral compare?
Data period: Wave 8, 26th August 2020

Wirral
(Wave 3, 
3rd June)

Wirral 
(Wave 4, 

17th June)

Wirral 
(Wave 5, 
1st July)

Wirral
(Wave 6, 

20th July)

Wirral
(Wave 7, 

27th July)

Wirral
(Wave 8, 

26th Aug)
National 
average

Regional 
average

Statistical 
neighbour 

average
Children started to be 
looked after in the week 

1 5 2 1 2 1 2 2 2

CLA contacted by social 
worker 

79.51% 82.60% 75.24% 71.17% 72.44% 72.03% 44.22% 45.93% 48.57%

CLA reviewed since COVID 99.88% 99.88% 99.88% 99.88% 99.88% 99.88% 94.90% 96.29% 99.48%

CLA Interaction with social 
worker in last 4 weeks 

98.04% 96.23% 98.18% 96.11% 95.24% 94.92% 70.46% 70.13% 72.05%

Child on CPP contacted by 
social worker

94.34% 90.36% 88.43% 89.15% 88.76% 84.36% 77.12% 63.93% 71.48%

CPP reviewed since COVID 100% 100% 99.59% 98.84% 99.61% 96.36% 95.99% 94.43% 97.61%

CPP Interaction with social 
worker in last 4 weeks 

100% 96.79% 98.35% 98.45% 98.45% 96.36% 70.46% 91.04% 92.45%

CIN contacted by social 
worker

- 70.10% 66.84% 66.69% 59.06% 59.05% 41.47% 37.92% 38.68%

CIN reviewed since COVID - 92.47% 92.39% 93.07% 92.04% 84.32% 86.19% 82.45% 96.38%

CIN Interaction with social 
worker in last 4 weeks 

- 87.62% 88.18% 87.48% 85.07% 83.39% 63.41% 58.09% 57.15%

% of referrals to social care 
from…individuals

26.32% 6.10% 5.17% 12.86% 6.76% 31.82% 11.54% 12.61% 12.39%

% of referrals to social care 
from…school

10.53% 2.44% 12.07% 10.00% 5.41% 5.41% 10.30% 7.45% 4.19%

% of referrals to social care 
from…health services

13.16% 21.95% 13.79% 12.86% 17.57% 15.91% 17.36% 16.70% 16.44%

% of referrals to social care 
from…police

28.95% 35.37% 39.66% 31.43% 25.68% 29.55% 39.36% 39.18% 33.56%

% of referrals to social care 
from…other

21.05% 34.15% 29.31% 32.86% 44.59% 22.73% 30.60% 12.61% 36.26%

CL
A

CP
P

CI
N

Re
fe

rr
al

s

Page 98



Health & Social Care
Data Period: 9th September 2020

(includes diagnosed & symptomatic) 
(Data 10 April update due 14 April)

178 Covid-19 New Admissions

This is the number of new 
admissions to hospital with 
the patient having Covid19.

Please note this figure is 
cumulative from 17th

March

245 Covid-19 Hospital Deaths

709 discharged to
care homes

10 on 20 Apr 

531 discharged to 
Domiciliary Care/ Reablement

2 on 20 Apr

1,241 hospital discharges supported (Since 24th March)

Total of 32 critical 
care beds in Wirral

31 available beds 
Beds can be used for 
non-COVID-19 
patients

1 people in critical 
care beds for COVID-
19 related

WUTH use High dependency unit (HDU) and Intensive treatment unit (ITU). WUTH have developed another 14 
contingency Critical Care beds, total now 32. This data is correct for 19th August 2020.

751 Positive
COVID-19 cases
This is the number of 
inpatients diagnosed 
with Covid19 in a 
hospital setting from 
11th March. 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

30-Mar 30-Apr 31-May 30-Jun 31-Jul 31-Aug

55

34

1917

10
5

1210
5

9

2 2 2 3 2 1 0 0 0 0 1 0
0

20

40

60

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

4

36

131
149

72

4639
50

38

62
50

35

8 8 4 3 3 1 4 1 0 1 0 0 0
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

22
-M

ar
29

-M
ar

05
-A

pr
12

-A
pr

19
-A

pr
26

-A
pr

03
-M

ay
10

-M
ay

17
-M

ay
24

-M
ay

31
-M

ay
07

-Ju
n

14
-Ju

n
21

-Ju
n

28
-Ju

n
05

-Ju
l

12
-Ju

l
19

-Ju
l

26
-Ju

l
02

-A
ug

09
-A

ug
16

-A
ug

23
-A

ug
30

-A
ug

06
-S

ep

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

17-Mar-20 17-Apr-20 17-May-20 17-Jun-20 17-Jul-20 17-Aug-20

Page 99



Health & Social Care

1,695 people 
receiving Dom 

Care

22,545 hours of 
Dom Care 
available* 

11.5 average 
hours per Dom 
Care client**

*Please note, these are potential Dom Care hours not delivered hours
** Average worked out using delivered hours (14,700)

40 clients currently 
waiting for packages 

of care
(Correct as of 09/09/2020)

Between 2nd March 
and 5th September, 

1,651 packages of care 
have been allocated

Number of Care Homes Open/Closed to Admissions

126 Care Homes 
on Wirral

Closed to 
Admissions due to 

Covid19 – 6*

*2 T2A/Emergency Beds Care Home and 4 Non T2A/Emergency Beds Care Home. 

Based on 126 Care Homes responding out of 126 Care Homes.
Source – NHS Capacity Tracker (Based on maximum capacity of 3,609)

520 Vacancies in 
Care Home

14.4% of Beds 
Vacant

209 Covid-19 Social Care Deaths
This includes both confirmed and suspected cases of Covid19. 
The figures included have Covid19 deaths from the following settings: Care 
Homes; Carers; Day Services; Domiciliary Care and Supported Living. 

1819

42

35

1716

8
1112

4
1

4 3 3
1

5
1

4
0 1 1 0 1

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

05
-A

pr
-2

0
12

-A
pr

-2
0

19
-A

pr
-2

0
26

-A
pr

-2
0

03
-M

ay
-2

0
10

-M
ay

-2
0

17
-M

ay
-2

0
24

-M
ay

-2
0

31
-M

ay
-2

0
07

-Ju
n-

20
14

-Ju
n-

20
21

-Ju
n-

20
28

-Ju
n-

20
05

-Ju
l-2

0
12

-Ju
l-2

0
19

-Ju
l-2

0
26

-Ju
l-2

0
02

-A
ug

-2
0

09
-A

ug
-2

0
16

-A
ug

-2
0

23
-A

ug
-2

0
30

-A
ug

-2
0

06
-S

ep
-2

0

Number of Social Care Deaths - Weekly 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Page 100



Health & Social Care

0 Social Care staff diagnosed 
with COVID-19

(Carers, Dom Care and 
Supported Living)

Source: Care Home Data – NHS Capacity Tracker. Source for Dom Care, Supported Living – Daily 
Report.
Data is a snapshot for 9th September only.

22 Social Care service users currently diagnosed with 
COVID-19

(11 in Care Homes, 10 in Dom Care and 1 in Supported Living)

Please note Care Staff includes staff from the following settings: Care Homes; Carers; Day Services; 
Domiciliary Care and Supported Living. Source: NHS Capacity Tracker (Care Home data) and Daily 
Report (Dom Care, Supported Living and Carers).  Data is a snapshot for 9th September only.

This heatmap shows the 
number of social care 
clients who have been 
diagnosed or who are 
showing symptoms of 

Covid19 from 13th March 
through to now. 

Variants in colour 
indicates higher number 

of confirmed and 
suspected Covid19 cases. 

The green and yellow 
areas show higher number 
of cases. Currently these 

include parts of 
Birkenhead, Wallasey and 

New Brighton.

10 Social Care staff showing 
COVID-19 symptoms

(Carers, Dom Care and 
Supported Living)

1 Care Homes Staff 
diagnosed in last 24 

hours 

0 Care Homes Staff 
suspected in last 24 

hours 

2.1% of Social Care staff (Carers, Dom Care and Supported 
Living) are unavailable for work through either being 

diagnosed with Covid19 or showing symptoms

4.3% of Care Home staff are absent
(Correct as of 09/09/20)

Page 101



Health & Social Care

1,338 Social Care staff tested for Covid19
(26 staff tested on 17th April)

15.5% of Social Care Staff tested so far
(Date 9th September)

PLEASE NOTE THIS IS AFTER THE SWITCH TO THE NEW PROCESS WITH NOT ALL PROVIDERS 
RESPONDING YET. Please note Care Staff includes staff from the following settings: Care Homes; 
Carers; Day Services; Domiciliary Care and Supported Living. 
Percentage of all social care staff is worked out by current number of staff in responses (7,076)

6,462 tests completed at 
Bidston Satellite Site so far 

(set up from 4th May)

Please note the maximum number of tests per day at 
the Bidston site has just been increased to 150. 

Number of staff tested % of staff tested 

Care Homes 852 21.9%

Dom Care 66 7.3%

Supported Living 175 8.8%

Covid19 Testing – Social Care staff 

Covid19 Testing – Care Home Residents tested 
by Community Swabbing Team

382 Care Home 
Residents Tested by 

Community 
Swabbing  
(Up until 7th

September)

579 tests at West Kirby MoD site
(between 31st May to 2nd June)

Please note the Bidston MoD and West Kirby 
MoD sites were a temporary mobile site and 
just for the dates stated. 

2,118 tests carried out at 
MoD Mobile Testing Sites
1,170 tests at Bidston MoD site

(between 30th April to 3rd May)

369 tests at West Kirby MoD site
(between 6th to 9th July)

361 tests at Birkenhead MoD site
(between 24th to 26th July)

319
378

269

120145

281282
198

244
290288322

381412
354

258

420

830

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800
900

10
-M

ay
17

-M
ay

24
-M

ay
31

-M
ay

07
-Ju

n
14

-Ju
n

21
-Ju

n
28

-Ju
n

05
-Ju

l
12

-Ju
l

19
-Ju

l
26

-Ju
l

02
-A

ug
09

-A
ug

16
-A

ug
23

-A
ug

30
-A

ug
06

-S
ep

Number tested per week at Bidston 
Satellite Site

8

29
23 20

13

25 25 28

17 19
24

20
15 13

26
20

25
16 13

3
0

10

20

30

40

Weekly number of Care Home Residents tested by 
Community Swabbing 

Page 102



Deceased Management 

06 September 2020

available mortuary 
capacity at Arrowe 

Park Hospital

decrease 
from the 
same period 
in 2019

cremations between 31st Aug – 06th Sep

live services
broadcast from 

Landican 
Crematorium

10 Burials between 31st August – 6th September (8 between 24th – 30th August (. Previous year 
burial statistics are being sourced to allow us to calculate % increases of the number of burials 

during 2020 COVID-19 periods, as with the cremation statistics above

(13 Live Services 24th – 30th August ) 

4 additional staff now 
trained on crematoria & 
cemetery operations

30 people allowed to 
attend funerals, adhering 
to strict social distancing 

guidance

10
63% 

41
13% 

(71% 17th August)

63

48

61

56

49
47

58

47
44 44

58

41

30

40

50

60

70

80

27/07 -
02/08

03/08 -
09/08

10/08 -
16/08

17/08 -
23/08

24/08 -
30/08

31/08 -
06/09

2019

2020

64% 63%

82% 82%

64%

71%

63%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

15/07 21/07 28/07 04/08 11/08 17/08 08/09

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 7 October 2020

REPORT TITLE: WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE

REPORT SUMMARY

The Policy and Resources Committee, in co-operation with the other Policy and Service 
Committees, is responsible for proposing and delivering an annual committee work 
programme. This work programme should align with the corporate priorities of the Council, in 
particular the delivery of the key decisions which are within the remit of the Committee.

It is envisaged that the work programme will be formed from a combination of key decisions, 
standing items and requested officer reports. This report provides the Committee with an 
opportunity to plan and regularly review its work across the municipal year. The work 
programme for the Policy and Resources Committee is attached as Appendix 1 to this report.

RECOMMENDATION/S

Members of the committee are invited to comment on and note the proposed Policy and 
Resources Committee work programme for the remainder of the 2020/21 municipal year.

Page 105

Agenda Item 12



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 To ensure Members of the Policy and Resources committee have the opportunity to 
contribute to the delivery of the annual work programme

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 Various formats for the workplan were explored. The current format is open to 
amendment to match the requirements of the committee.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The work programme should align with the priorities of the Council and its partners. 
The programme will be informed by:

(i) The Council Plan
(ii) The Council’s transformation programme
(iii) The Council’s Forward Plan
(iv) Service performance information
(v) Risk management information
(vi) Public or service user feedback
(vii) Referrals from Council

Terms of Reference

The Policy and Resources Committee has two main areas of responsibility, which is 
to provide strategic direction to the operation of the Council, including making 
decisions on policies and co-ordinating spend not reserved to full Council, and to 
maintain a strategic overview of outcomes, performance, risk management and 
budgets.

The Committee is charged by full Council to:-

(a) formulate, co-ordinate and implement corporate policies and strategies and the 
medium term financial plan (budget), which includes responsibility for any 
decision:
(i) that relates to such matters to the extent that they are not reserved to full 

Council;
(ii) on any cross-cutting policies that impact on other committee areas;
(iii) on policy matters not otherwise allocated to any other committee; and
(iv) to determine any dispute or difference between committees;

(b) provide a co-ordinating role across all other service committees and retain a 
‘whole-council’ view of performance, budget monitoring and risk management, 
which includes responsibility for a decision:
(i) that has a major impact on a number of Council services or on the Council 

as a whole;

Page 106



(ii) on any virement between Budget funds (revenue) requested by a 
Committee or officer in excess of £100,000;

(iii) on any virement between Budget funds (capital) or any amendment to the 
Capital Programme requested by a Committee or officer in excess of
£100,000;

(iv) regarding land and property including major acquisition and disposals, 
which includes reserved decision making concerning any purchase, sale or 
transfer of a value in excess of, or likely to exceed, £100,000;

(v) regarding companies or limited liability partnerships including acquisition 
and disposals; and

(vi) which is deemed significant in terms of impact on the Council’s revenue or 
capital (to be determined by the Head of Paid Service and/or Section 151 
Officer in consultation with the Leader);

(c) without limiting the generality of responsibility for cross-cutting policies (at (a) 
above), lead on behalf of the Council:
(i) in matters concerning relationships with HM Government, the Liverpool City 

Region Combined Authority and other major public and non-public bodies;

(d) appoint Council representatives as required;

(e) nominate councillors and other persons to outside bodies; and

(f) undertake responsibility for developing and monitoring the enabling corporate 
services, including, finance and investment, project support and risk 
management, strategic procurement and commercial strategies, ICT, property 
and asset management, human resources and organisational development, 
law and governance, communications and public affairs, emergency planning 
and business continuity.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 This report is for information and planning purposes only, therefore there are no direct 
financial implication arising. However, there may be financial implications arising as a 
result of work programme items.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. However, there may be 
legal implications arising as a result of work programme items.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

6.1 There are no direct implications to staffing, ICT or Assets.

Page 107



7.0 RELEVANT RISKS

7.1 The Committee’s ability to undertake it’s responsibility to provide 
strategic direction to the operation of the Council, make decisions on 
policies, co-ordinate spend, and maintain a strategic overview of 
outcomes, performance, risk management and budgets may be 
compromised if it does not have the opportunity to plan and regularly 
review its work across the municipal year.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

8.1 Not applicable

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the 
way it carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An 
Equality Impact Assessment is a tool to help council services identify 
steps they can take to ensure equality for anyone who might be affected 
by a particular policy, decision or activity.

This report is for information to Members and there are no 
direct equality implications.

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 This report is for information to Members and there are no direct 
environment and climate implications.

REPORT AUTHOR: Steve Fox, Head of Democratic Services
telephone: 0151 
691 8145 email: 
stevefox@wirral.g
ov.uk

APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Policy and Resources Committee Work Plan

BACKGROUND PAPERS

The Council Plan
The Council’s transformation programme 
The Council’s Forward Plan Plan

Council Meeting Date

Page 108

mailto:stevefox@wirral.gov.uk
mailto:stevefox@wirral.gov.uk


POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21

 

Contact Officer/s: Andrew Mossop

Bryn Griffiths

AGENDA FOR POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 

Item Key Decision 
Yes/No

Lead Departmental 
Officer

Wirral Plan 
Priority

Appointment of Sub-
Committees – Finance; 
Snr Appointments and 
Staffing; Shareholder 
Board; Local Plan

No Steve Fox All

Sale of Land at Arrowe 
Park Road, Upton

Yes Alan Evans Sustainable 
Environment

New Budget Process Yes Shaer Halewood Inclusive 
Economy

Covid-19 Financial 
Position Statement

Yes Shaer Halewood Inclusive 
Economy

Car Parking Charges 
Options

Yes Nicki Butterworth Sustainable 
Environment

Sale of Rock Ferry High 
School

Yes Alan Evans Sustainable 
Environment

 

Deadline for SLT Deadline for Briefing  Agenda Published

14 September 2020 21 September 2020

Page 109



Anticipated Future KEY DECISIONS 

Item Approximate 
timescale 

Lead Departmental 
Officer  

Wirral Plan 
Priority

Consolidation of 
Assets 

November 2020 Alan Evans Sustainable 
environment 

Treasury 
Management 
Strategy

November 2020 Shaer Halewood Inclusive Economy,
Brighter Futures

Investment 
Strategy

November 2020 Shaer Halewood Inclusive Economy,
Brighter Futures

Capital Strategy November 2020 Shaer Halewood Inclusive Economy,
Brighter Futures

Replacement of 
Council’s Critical 
Business Systems

November 2020 Shaer Halewood Brighter Futures

Civic Crowd 
Funding in Wirral

December 2020 Shaer Halewood Inclusive Economy,
Brighter Futures

Northwest 
Community Bank

January 2021 Shaer Halewood Inclusive Economy,
Brighter Futures

Birkenhead One 
Stop Shop

January 2021 Shaer Halewood Safe & Pleasant 
Communities, 
Brighter Futures

Real Living Wage 
Foundation 
Accreditation

January 2021 Shaer Halewood Inclusive Economy, 
Brighter Futures

 
   

 

WORK PROGRAMME ACTIVITIES OUTSIDE COMMITTEE 

Item Format Timescale Lead Officer  Progress 
Working Groups/ Sub Committees

Senior Officer Appointments 
& Staffing Sub-Committee

Sub-
Committee

November 
2020

Paul Satoor

Finance Sub-Committee Sub-
Committee

TBC Shaer 
Halewood

Shareholder Board Sub-
Committee

November 
2020

Shaer 
Halewood

Local Plan Steering Sub-
Committee

Sub-
Committee

TBC Alan Evans

Task and Finish work

Page 110



TBC

Spotlight sessions / workshops
TBC

Corporate scrutiny / Other 
TBC

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Car Parking Charges Options
	Enc. 1 APPENDIX 1 Car Parking Charges Options
	Enc. 2 APPENDIX 2 - Update on what other councils are doing regarding car parking charges
	Enc. 3 APPENDIX 3 Current parking charge tariffs income and effects of increases
	Enc. 4 APPENDIX 4 - Wirral Chamber of Commerce BID team comments

	6 Site of Rock Ferry High School - Sale to a Registered Provider
	Enc. 1 for Site of Rock Ferry High School - Sale to a Registered Provider

	7 Sale of Land at Arrowe Park Road, Upton
	Enc. 1 for Sale of Land at Arrowe Park Road, Upton
	Enc. 2 for Sale of Land at Arrowe Park Road, Upton
	Enc. 3 for Sale of Land at Arrowe Park Road, Upton
	Sheets and Views
	A3
	A1-TITLE-BLOCK



	Enc. 4 for Sale of Land at Arrowe Park Road, Upton

	8 Appointment Of Sub Committee Members
	9 2020/21 & 2021/22 Covid-19 Budget Position Statement
	10 2021/22 Budget Process
	11 Budget and Performance Monitoring
	Appendix 1. Weekly Council Dashboard 100920
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19


	12 Work Programme update
	Appendix 1 Work Programme


